








26

NEER

HITES

EET (L)

BN (FT AR )

BaE

B

e

Fxa
(R=FE/\FWA =+ 1 ARE()

BES

PR

B Tys

BN
(R-FELFANAZ1ARIE)

i
(R=FFENFHH—+LAGE)

BYFHTES
GEES
S
LR

AR SR

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

BREERBEEBETEEX M
BB

# 5t

By

FTRERT AT 70%%

B

BEESLIE

0902-0903% %0905-0906 =

BEEBR)ERERAT —TTNFFR

SRR
RERIERZMEISFT
5%

S4TH1 35
KR

1118

B EED

ZX GBI
WA

B

RIRE BT8R

B & ghe 28
181E

BEREREEKE
RS

T

LES

FHESEXRE
BEF(EE)

R

SE

ERARIRT

B8 LS EYRTARAT
&

LB

HE6735

TEREIRTT
B

IR
TEREE3R
EHERITES
TEERITANE

hERRITEREDTT
hEE ARAME
ERE

JEAT

R

Adblgg

A
o

FERDELERBFE
Bank of Bermuda (Cayman) Limited
P.O.Box 513

Strathvale House

North Church Street

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1106

Cayman Islands

ROECRBFEEEDE

SEEERARAT
B

T
SEAREFR285

S EEF L

261E

Ht

http://www.eaglenice.com.hk

RRADCER

2368



Mg mE

—BENF —ETHF
EF BEBT BEET
BEUA 860 519
BRITE - B3 - FIE RFBIERNEF 174 114
RATRIESE B AR FE R 125 78
FRREARZF| 0.27% 7T 0.1887T
SRS
— A3 7.0784l 607811l
— K5 10.05781L 607811l

—EBENE —TTHE
B R BEBT BEAT
AERE 927 644
BERFE = =z
R E AR 780 574
HREEFE 1.5658 T 1.34% 7T
B FEMAEEELETEERS) 2 =z
EFEMBEREER z =z
EZIA Ji% SR AEAL 2= R
BEET BEHBT

BX(ER)ZERERLE —TTNFFH

27



28

FFEIRS

L,

BEZTT)\FZA=1+—"HILFE AEEEZXWA - EFRAN T EDRIFACEE

AREBRBZFEIMESR -

Jp= o RSN
g Mo 4% B ==

BB EERRER  WAGREMBIR  TELEER
BIRER  SAEBERERRELER  PRESKREIREZNES™

% REIRAREE  AEENERSEERETETS -

RERAE -

RARARE  "EBMR ST N\FHREBALHELSERA
860,500,00058 7T K2 4£%11124,700,00058 7T - B - ZEZELE5 5
EFA65.8%K%60.4% c AEBR =TT N\FoHERR =2
EEEEREAERANBREE  KEEEINELEZ NN
M BEEEERBEF UM ERIRE T NEERSHFY
FrhREMmE ©

TTXRERE - B R R
REARAFME(RE)TERAREZ EEEELY - A
AEBZREIETS  EAEEERHEREERREENA
& A" TTRFENG  FEERAREERATS - F£H
WEERETSNLEEh - P ENFN26.1%EE -2 L
FRBB50% © NEIREFRERN « ZHLERS5.1% °

BE(EBR)ERERAT —TTN\FEFER

BETRLSREERIES ARBEHER BEEPERE
R-TTN\FILRRENRE - RISEESHRENFTR - RE
AMBABEARANIRR  PEEHRETEN_ETAFE
“EENFNFEREEER%  M_TBNFE_T—_F0|
B20% |EZ  PREBERKREHREENTESTIS

RIEEZERE  AEECEERNEL S IHRERTET
1% o MEMSRARKADFTRESERSI  THEREZER
ARB(TAREDEREA - RIBPETEHRITRNDERAF
RERRE - FRARKH_ZZEN\FE2_2——FHTFH
B#94-5% - ARETHEREERA LAHEHARE - RREE
ERALFHERMBEFE - RIAHEE - BEMAREZEK
ABEENUR-EBEENHE RFAX AR T - KHBIR
(ZBETE - I BREMFAREEE 2 EMERE -

BAISAE—PREAREHEHEEZEETE -




PEIBFHEITZ — RINFBRAER - MEEAETERSE
BRE CEBRERFEBIR - R hEARKREER
BINLECANKENBRERKRAML - ~ARELBEZF
HAMESER CEERRER  YAGBREMBGIOR - o
EERMEEREE CEREN  SAKREZRFELER

R ERE
ATHEFRHEEZENRY - AEBESEERNZ R -
BUEESEEERNEREARK  WRBRKES AR
BB EE NSO HER I BER  UEARANER R
5 -

SERBRNEREVBEERNERAT - —HEBOINELE
BEERE  REELREX  EEAERH  REBELEEX
Ko R AEBEEERFELE(R—BEEEENE K
KRADRE - BREEREIRDHER - RRFRE - WER
ERARDR) - Bt - AEEEAEAERALEEEE - B
WERAERPII(REERRE) Fat - BRI ERRHX
A EABENERERERER - BEPRHERIRN
B fERREE o

BMNERENREY  BBTEH2NFIRE - BRRRE
T HMBFIE S AEENTE AR TIREE - RRERE
ABABEEHINER  <EEEFRAEHEEZERE
Uiea BiRIER



EREHRE(E)

HEEREOE

REBFE  AEBEEFERA - BF RAEFFEHEREFL
8o AEBHBE_TTN\FZA=ZT—BLFEZLEERAE
hN65.8% 860,500,000/ 7T * M E=F A A519,100,0008 7T
AEBE-TT)N\F 2 EFA202,400,00087C © M _ZTT+F
Bl %132,100,000/8 7T * FHiEA53.2% o —TF)\F 2 44F| £F
60.4%% 124,700,000/ 7T © —ZTZT-+41%77,700,000% 7T °
EHERFERHNRERMERFHESRER ZH AR
SIBRFATE - EREBACTRE & EIRA 2 RIBEREIFER -

ZEENFZENERA_TELF2254% N K1.9%E
235% - TR AEBERAEE—BATEMEMESKE
12,200,000 7T ik il 2 IEEE W - AEE 2L R
Flfh =T T+ 4 286,500,000 7T L F+48.4% = 128,400,000
BIL e ZETENF2REEMNER149%  BZTTLF2
16.7% 8 1.8% » EFERMAFEGEM T - SEARARE
HEAE BEBEREMHELASEMBRA LR  BUEEE
KA K ZR IS INFTIERK, o

AEBEE-_ZTT)/\F=ZA=+—AHLFENEREF A266
AL MAFRAB18.28L - EFSEFREE_TTNF=
B=+—BIFERMGSRI0BINERERE - BRBIRMNF
7B R EIRRE - FALKREBZRI17EW - ZFTNF
ZIRBLLERES.1% » M_TELFRA71.5%(KEFT =TT
T FEINRIIRE) - AEEREFBERIREBOR - LB
AR B F o

| Bl

T e e,

e EETEE

BE(EBR)ERERAE —TTNFEFER

ARG EIRATR

BN B ERRABREDRAIE L TBEHBY - AEET
T RS M) A A B A S R AT IR S B A R B B T AR
ZHERBRBERE - BEBUALBIE - AERERERTESR
SMPERARE -

i ERE  BEEAEEDRRE  PEERNEESE(ERNEE
BENDEH FEERAFHRER10%2EE - FRENETE
ZABLBIE BT - BABREATERRPREATEA
O ARERBII60% A £ - E— S REFR AR EZAHERT
5o FREAEHFEHBEE @ HEKRESHRDEMS - F
HERBFEMSERNSREL TS - AFRBEMNEBRT
LaRiER —EE-FE_TTLFNFERENAE27%
MALEE —SENFUREFETSHEE —BEHBENHET
BE - BESTRMAEEEICEERABREFETS - I
BERATHESHRMEFTMNELE - AEEEPRELES
F ABERNEERER  BERDEER AT REHRTS
REICESTE o Fit - RARKREF - EHAEERTRBETISZH
ERELOIESEBELR -




ERHRE(E)

k5N - #5755 #1200,000,000% 7T 2 3 & 5 106,000,000 7T 2
ABARTEEERNEBREARP B - AFERERN
(WVRIFHEIWERERMEEREEED © (i)aERMAAT
HEABFINERMS T REERESINBERRIFHEER
o FELARE AR - R(iDBA SR EEMSARE EEN
R AR ER

BIVRGEHA S BAKREREEIARE  RAKBFBES
I - M ARR RGO o

EEE—E
ZKEIEEAUJ EXEE B ENRE - TRITESMNHEEE -
RZZENF  AEEHESARMBESLEZBRAARE
2,000,0007T - WERETHEE - —RABEEXERXIE - tINRE e -
TRYMBENTIERREEAEES —EE2T(F  BBATHET i{*'ﬁ-lm.lliiﬂ!ﬂg Wﬂ
EEINRE  EEIKE - RITEES  WHRETHHEER - #F 1 Zoj ; ?l;lfuz
BTIHHEEFESEREEFRIFENIER o )53 gy S

&)

$}\§§ﬁi\%$%l RORHEFTERBREEEMREHZE
BER - RATRULBRHSRER - HERH  EBEHELEPY
AEBTEE SR - TR 2888 T 2 881 T8 B8 3 AR TS BUA
RAVEEHS ©

’/ ME 5= (B R ) 355 e A et

TE
BEEFH

B —TF/\FLA+/\HB

mx(Ep)ERERAT —TEAsss 31



REBESRUBER

REBEFE  AEEEEEFRRABESHR - XEE R
LRSI EE 2 ERRETRHEMNEREERINHEEMS -
RZZEENF=ZA=+—0 A5£@EEHReERESEHEER
274,600,000 7T + XE /B AREEEZETL(ZEZLF=
A=-+—H :252,600,000&x) - R=ZFEENF=A=+—
A AEEVEAEEEE(ZST+F=-A=+—H : &)
RZFEZNF=ZA=+—H8 rEEORTEREEELAHE
106,000,000 T (ZEZE+F = =+—H : 137,200,000
T0) + WEAG)ARBIETERARIER ¢ R(i)AA R =K B AR
EEBBARBRERR - XAEBR_ZEZEN\F=A=1+—H
F—EE+F=ZA=+—HUTESHRITHEREERE -

ERERE  BAMBEREARNBRFERASIME - X
SEREAN T ZR AN IRRESEIINRE - THRREAE
BNWEER2LBEATE -

R-EENFZA=1+—8 AEBzEELR(AILAEFmAE
BEANEBBEEEZADH)B158% (BT +F=A=+—
H:11.0%) e

SNERBRER

AEEAEHRZEERR - ZERBRRELLEMAZTR
ARBETES - AEBEZINERREE ARBRETHRZ
Rk - ARNEBEEL ZIMNERBRAIATREE - AEEREHE
EH 2 NERBEMN - NAEEFEFABRESETEE Y
BIBR ©

AEE B RBEINEEFBR - A - EEESERINER
b WHFBZEEELEHEARINERE

EXRE

RIZZNF=ZA=+—H FEEHEHEEAEARE(Z
TTLE-A=+—A: &)

“EFE \FEH

EXRBRHEHESHE
RER - TEEALEMRBARIRBENT - BEFAZWE
M AR BRFIBENMERRME28

BRAEBRERERE
R-BENFZAZ+—0  AEEGEEAEARARE=
EELF=A=T—H: &) -

FEERNEEBBRAZERAENT

RZBENE RIZTZTLHF
=A=+—-8B =A=+—H
FHBxT FET

DETAME R -
ERRE 9,403 —
EEENEE 1,496 570
10,899 570

RIBTBNEFE=A=1+—8 ' ARRRAQTETH BRI
B2 RITEREERERRITEL &%106,000,0008 T ( ZEF
+FE=A=+—H : 137,200,000/& 7T ) A FIERR °

EE R HMBUER

RZZEENFZA=1+—HB AEEMEREEERALEFY
6,900ZEEB(ZTETLFE=A=+—H : £5,400%) - REIE
FE  EERMZLAHE(BREESME) A160,300,000 7T
(ZZZ+F=HF=+—H : 105,000,000/ 7T) °

EEMEHZEETHERR EXERREATTEEHEE -
AEETREAREFLAERHIEATRE B R EBHRIR
RENEEEF R AR P ERE (L P RSB -



=

=REREEERBRE

HITES

EEA 475 B-TT-FTANEFAREREENTE
% WARDFARAMA B EREAEBREFEES
B TBREREREY  BEEERKELEREESEE
BT FE5 - BABRHEENES -

BN - 4458 BE-TTLF+ARZERANRAMITESR
TR - BR—NN\—FNMA—FTEaBRERELRERE
PRODF] > ZEBRE-BEER-NANEFADRBERA
A Pt RESREREEREEZAR  RELERKESE
EREESERS - TFER - RARBYL LGS -

BAE - 665% 0 B —_TTHUFMAREARRFNITES © BT
LB RBIZHKU & Fong@EMBERERA - RIIMEBEHR
X RBEAERE —RERTWITESHRWE - BXLE
FAEBYGEREEB T2 MEBAREE(XE ] ER5E
BEAEERBELEM - BELEE - NNEFREEREEY
ARGAERAB (B DERETRARMITIE(EE)E
RARBMAIR : s51)(TMITDWRTEEREERH A&
WILEBHDERER - AREMERE  HBLERSES KR
5o BALTMEEB R ER L ARENEEBEAR A RNT
B=-

REF 535 B _ETLFTARZERARRNITES -
BRAEEHRERBEE  EXRMA BT EHME
EEHE  RFFEATLENIF - R—AN—FE-NNRF
i - RERR e 2RERETEYHRORR  KFHE
MEBHERTE  RER-_ZT—F  MARNZELETH
FHARRDE - RZTERKELEREETHRE_THF
1B o AR/ EREE -

SR 58K B-TTMENALEARTNTES - B
ARARSHEEA R EHEER BN EASES
TE - BEARERTRER TETATNEERABES

RZALEMRRIBERIEBNARARNES - FREHTH
TEERA-—NMNAAFROERTT = ERERBE 2 —WEL
o

BHEZ 45 B AARFZAMAREBERR _ZZT_F
TABZEARARARTEERAREREE - BXTAEAE
BHE  MBERERTHES - RERKERHEERDSHER
FETRE T HFER o EMAREKER - BRTEREE —FK
REENTE - BERBIE-

BRER 4358 B NWN\ELF=ZAMAAREB LR _TZRF
TARZEARRARITES - TRASERPEIRANZLER
E-RELAFEEAEENRTEEANEERERER o
B-_ZTWFENAR - HERRRZEMBRRMEINERK
BERAFZES - REAREXRELETEER —+FER -

£ 545 B_ZETRFTARERRRRITES - 5%
ERBEERBER T\ FREEXLR - BA/KITZE
B AEMTLERER -

RXHF - STE RCBENF - ANMAREEEEEETG
BEER-_ZETN\FOARZEREARRRTES - THERE
BYBOARS R ER L RE LT BN - YHEAXESFAE
1o RAEBHENERAEMNERNRNERNELRRE
ENBARNTBRERBEBEER—AN=ZFMAKT °
REERBHTETNTHEE T4 YEEZEHRTETE
R~ BERBBEREREAR - REABAA=TFEE
X RKRE - ABRIKITERERER - EMAKXARA - #
RERETORREEBELM B R EEREM -

B 555 RCETE-F T AHEARRRTEERN
ETLEFAARMT EBRLEABAKERBRBI R ERER -
BREETREXER _+H5EBLR  BISEENHEES
M o REHEBIAER LT AREEEBERABR AR (AIHE

Bx (AR ZERBRAE —TTN\FER

33



34

EENEREEEBRE(E)

Wah Fu International Holdings Limited)E % ° B INAREE
Al - BHEE—RKEBESFRAINEEESE - B E RETEIZER
(TRIER ) ERRRERHL B ER AR QB H B FFRTT
EFEE-TT=FT AL - BRREFATEHML -

MIRE - 5158  R-ZERFTAREARBRTESE N
ZTN\FUART  AEAKEEENTHERSS - KEX
AEBREBRBRERE — THUFERLSR - WERBITZ

=W

Bliasis  ARZERETPER

BYFITES

RE®E 415 R-FE=ERBEBNEASTHETEET
Bl - WABREHMAREREGE - RELEGHRIBS
HEDHEER  RE-TT-F T ARMEAARETE
HITES -

ZEIA - 3958 © BANEERM - BRR—NNTFISEBRINZE
MBREEREBLEN - RR—NWNZFERA/BESETE
M EINEEHXAEER - FREBNAHEEESF
RAA - —HKRBRMEIER ETARRANIERITES - Tk
ERERZMER ETHEREEZERER AR RLHRKAH
EMBRHOERARNBEILIFMITES - WIREIFER R
SRHEIERBER AN BIIFNTES - RIVMIAER LT
#IPrime Investments Holdings Limited & 821k - 7 94745 B
ERERABNAGAINE - FE_TZE_F+—AREEERRD
RV IENITES -

BREAHE - 665% © AWorld Friendship Company Limited =&k

TREH - BEEKEHERRB=1TF  2RLEHREHEL
%o RE_ZTNFNARBEARRBILIFNTES

BEEBR)ERERAT —TTNFFR

SREEE

HEE - 365 - BE_EERFRARMAREBEEEIVHEE
ER-ZZEZRFNARZERREBRAWE AEAEEE
it M RERETRIIBE 2B - R ENEBERE
FTRRTTIRS)- BER T ST TERLF - EMAREER - &
BR—FREBMXAER LW 2 RUER AR EEEIEM A —
B mASHAMBEREITAEABE T FLR - IRLRHA
ERMBARGHBEET B - AT ESHMAGZAES

=

E
B 305 BE_TTRF/\AERMAKREE - AiEEBIE
BERMHE  REREWREES - S EBERR —MERS
FTERIT B S ER AR - 28ZMP B - ARRER
R ETRIAR RERT TIE - EIMAKREER - BR—HRR
BRPAER LM e A RKERERTERETIF - RHEBO+F
SRR BREL R - S/ MAKAEARTIASZ G282
i - WABBEMAE NRRSFARGHMAGLEE -

FHRR 505 0 BE_ZTRF/N\ARMARER L ERA LM
HERMERE - RARAEEER IR BT BEEE -
MEHEZHZREDRAFNRKEMIFEEARNRKE
SUERMEkmE SRR — T &8 -

IER - 315 BT EF-ARNMAREE - BHEEHE
TEBEGEHAR) T/ NEAEREREFEREET L
RHAERER - NARREEBORIE - EMAREER -
MEABCFRERE S RERGMENRER - T/MERER
BMRBOH S BHERETBURBEEREABNDEDG
BEEEBELEN - WA ARBRTERERE



=

=S

ARREE(EZDENRZEFTERS ARRARAEEHEZE " ZTN\F=A=+—RULFEZEEXIHRE -

FEER
ARFZ EBEBARERE - AHARNEHBL T BEBHERABERAR 7  ARETBEHILTNENLRET
AEAED -

FERKRE
AEEBBE_TTN\F=ZA=+—"HLEFEZIENARRNRBEREBNZ B Z MR E NI EREFE47E1087 -

ARBRZEZELF+ - AT N\ RBIRNFHEESSREARTEN - EFZEAN _ZTN\FNAZTRABIIBRREM2BR
RN AR ERPRESREBRI0B - HLERBEFAMBHRE - FREERBERTEAREEE T 2B a8 -

RARBITHROEUBRBREBMESRIERRE

RARRZZETMEI A BTG R TR RIR S RIENR AR 124 5343,000,0008 7T - RZZFEZFENF=A=+—H -
REE T EAMAFTSEIALI343,000,000/87T - MAMAGEARBARAZSTMF = A= +MB 2@k ([ ])Frs#EE A
BRERB FBOT

BEET

R EARAMBDILETIEEHE 50
BEMKS  KERKE 40
iSRS 20
—REEED 233
343

BX(ER)ZERERLE —TTNFFH

35



36

MR EREE
AT ARERR T RS ERHBERAEANREE 2 ETIREEREERBERE -
5
BZ=A=1+—HILLEE
—EEN\E —ETF ZETRF —ETRHF —ETF
FET FHET FAET FAET FAT
(g&E5) (2&=75)
BEUWA 860,487 519,103 519,310 451,446 325,411
B 75 B E A 140,659 86,482 92,081 104,103 35,922
18 (16,001) (8,763) (14,670) (9,200) (3,511)
F P A 124,658 77,719 77,411 94,903 32,411
EERAE
R=B=+-—H
—EENF —ETF —ETREF —ETRF —ETF
FET FET FET FAET FAET
(gE5) (r&75)
JERENEE 373,673 269,805 267,244 130,618 51,395
MEEE 553,144 374,647 311,805 420,808 118,535
mEAE (133,745) (69,382) (46,909) (53,226) (77,136)
MEBEEFE 419,399 305,265 264,896 367,582 41,399
JEREAE (12,903) (1,252) (1,802) (898) (6,460)
780,169 573,818 530,338 497,302 86,334
P -

(i) AEBBE_TTNF=A=T - HUIEFEZGAREEURAEER _ZZNF=A=+—HZEEKEEHRE

MEELA-+T=RZFH  WRIEAEY  WIRAKERITRERZFES —BEFEZREIREH

(ii) FEEBE _TTERF=A=T - ALFEZEAEXEURAEER _ETRF=A=+—HzEEREEHE

AFELANBZFR  ARENET

(iii) REBBE_TTRFoA=ST - HAUEFEZGREEURAEER —_EZF=A=+—HZEEREEME

NEEATABZFR -

BB ERA-TE

 ESEESA-TE

BB ERA-TE

(iv) FEEBE T N\FA=T - RALMAFERF2EAEEUNRAEEN _Z2LFR_ETN\F=A=+—HzGREERAEBE

EEHRARFRFELTEASHE -

BEEBR)ERERAT —TTNFFR



EEERE(E)

Y%~ BERSE
REENE - BERRERER 2 B BERRY RIS -

[LEN
ARATRE 9.2 B B B8 B R B A B R R 25

BrBERE
AAT 2 EHER AN SR BRI ERA EEMER G AEAARFRLAARARRBSBEN -

BE  BExHEXRQF LTES
AR AREA A BATRF RIS - Wl E AR T EHES -

e
ARTRAREZ RERBHE - SRRNHBBEN 2 R AMERDE -

CIR: 33

RZZEZENF=ZA=1T—H ARAIZFASHES R RIEKRXFE 2 A #5 KF#EFEE524,626,000%8 7T & 49,968,000/ T
FBIEAFE RIS © 524,626,000 T2 FIBBIEARABRG AZERERERHE  MR_TZENF=A=+—0 246 H
515,674,000 TR DK - EHEARATREEEZD RREE ARENERTABEBRTINMER ZER -

FREREFREER
REBFE  AARETATSIEL 2 SEEOEREBARFERHERML%  EFRAEERATEIEL 2 #EENE
64.7% °

REBRAFREADAHREEIER 2 RBROGAKEERBEAT 4% - EFASKAEERAIFL 2 REBAHE18.5% -

BREATEMARIMEE32(a) (i EE SN ARRRES - RECABBALTRIBEEMRAEA AR B SHITRAS% A L Z FFIK
R EEAEEAARPRHERES EEEE

BX(ER)ERERLE —TTNFFH

37



38

E
R ETESR

PITES
BETHEE (£7)

BRI S (7TB A8 - R=ETLFTA-AREM)
BAE S

RER L (R=ZZLFTA-BREMA)

EiE P
BES LT
PR SE
B yihsi
BH L

(RZZBTLFRNA=THEE)
MR SEE (7

SN\FMNA-—+HBET)

*H NH

BUFHTESE:
GOk S L
ER ) k
HEB S

REERBRARK  RXHELRZERAAFNETIMRELLEHIES  MERRR _ZT\FOA-+ABRER -

RERARBZABERMAESTE  ROFELE RBYXL BEFLL Shmigd REZEFLERFERELBHES
R REAEREBEREEBIRAFAGBERET -

ARFERERESAL FEREERBKELEZFEBLSHDERE  RAREAY - DRRE/BIAL -

EEREREEERE
AATEFRAREERERE L BEF BN FHREIIEE -

%%ZHE?EN’J

BRI RRBY Xt BASBERTIRBA (R ZEKEREFRMEZRARRBIR ZBHAR)IN - BIEEHEERARRE
ERRBFAGEESEEFEARBLEEMAMBRRFTLERRR TR —FRBEARECEERERIN) M2 RS
# e

BRFATESUBEE TN  EAETARRZABERANERREESTETREMEIMGX

EEME
EFRSARRRNBERAGHE - AMemEFS((EF N2TEEZRT  BE RENURAKERERETE

BEEBR)ERERAT —TTNFFR



EENEGHzER

REZZBZLHFNA+AA BRI EEAERRBY XL (AR St F+AZARZE2HTES) KRS LEERRBY X+
Z BRI E (R E ) BAR R 2 EH B A Flespar Age Limited([Jespar Agel)sT32 B Ei#:% © Bl © Jespar AgeME /7
WEREEAMA L2 ERARES (EXEE)BR AR « PEKZZINGBEECEBREFEDHKER AR LR EEFMA
ZARIRBER LR ERA T2 ERAER - Mlespar AgelRfEARBIME 174 $£72,680,0000 BAXEAE1.56/8 7T ARSI
BB EABREBRERRE - BRAFEBRARRBHA-STLEFRA LA ZBRAEE - LHEEHRBREN _TTLHF
NLATERK °

B ESCREBESN - RAEER - MRS ER AR RS AT AN B A T B YA LT = BEAZ ETAOP - HES
R A R -

ESRITBARRES - HEAROREZZEERER

R=FT/\EZA=1-8 - EERARBERAAA(EERESAREST1 RS RBE R ([ BH RO ) EXVE) 2
WA RBRG R BT - A REEAR S EIEXVEET RS BEME AR TNER TR (BEETRSEERTRE
BIRIEE A R DI S R B L R R A R EA) | RBRREES RO REN S AT EnE 2R 0E
HRER  RE EMEITAREEITESR SORETR((RETH ) EARARTRESYARSHARA A BZH K
HERZEAMT

VNN
EARDT
FriERAEE DBRITRAE
EEpE B9, Mg RE by Bk
EE SYEAE RS A A 72,650,000 - 14.54

(Bt%E)

BR/NEZ EREEAEA 26,164,800 - 5.24
RS EnlEEAEA 23,257,600 - 4.65
BES BERBAEAEA 4,500,000 — 0.90
EIE EREEAEA 1,680,000 - 0.34
PREAS EanBEEAEA 1,350,000 — 0.27
AT IE BERBAEAEA 1,043,000 — 0.21
£y EREEAEA 777,000 - 0.16

MIRE © UESERRID B Time Easy Investment Holdings Limited ([ Time Easy )4 + MTime Easy2 S BB/ TIRARES FHLAERH ©

BREXFAEREEI R-FTN\F=ZA=1—0  EFRTREAMEZLHEAR R B0 MK M #ELS - =RES - M
AIRIEE 7 KB GO F 352G - RIBIRETRIRBAAN R R BT -
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BREEM
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PRt BIFHIB BN I TS AR M 526 ©

BE_TZNF=ZA=1—H0  AREABEREBEAEA IR D EABEGE -

TERRREOREAERD Z2EZRER
R-ZTN\FZA=+—A  RAARDESRITEGESN -

THALTRARRR Z B MBI T - #E ERIEES R &)
EXVERE 2R3N FRERARRIRE A LR AR RERES MG GHIE36FREFEZECM S aRZERNT

SR NNG|
L ERER BRITRAE
BREE B9, @MY RE 2 ERaA
Time Easy BalA A A 72,650,000 14.54
(fF3E1)
ERTERDERAA SirEE R A A 192,000,000 38.42
(M'&Epk]) (MI5E2)
Wealthplus Holdings Limited LR AT 192,000,000 38.42
(TWealthplus ) (ME2)
WMTIZ(EE)BRAR SirEE R A A 192,000,000 38.42
(M#87tl) (FMI5E2)
Pou Hing Industrial Co. Ltd. R LR AT 192,000,000 38.42
(T'Pou HingJ) (FfF5E2)
Great Pacific Investments BXHEAAEA 192,000,000 38.42
Limited ([ Great Pacific]) (H7%2)
G
1. Time Fasy2SBEBITRAREEFA L EEH -
2. B FFAWealthplusZ &% + WealthplusAIFF B #87T4946.15% 4 o #87THiBPou HingZ &% © Pou HingBIFF & Great Pacific® &4
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Consolidated Income Statement

e R

(Year ended 31 March 2008)
(BE2=2T/\F=RA=+—HILFE)

Notes 2008 2007
BisE —EEN\E —TTHE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
REVENUE EEWA 5 860,487 519,103
Cost of sales SHE R (658,131) (387,006)
Gross profit EF 202,356 132,097
Other income and gains E A A iz 5 18,678 8,085
Selling and distribution costs SHE RO IR (15,231) (5,117)
Administrative expenses TBFX (65,144) (48,583)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BREL AR 6 140,659 86,482
Tax HE 9 (16,001) (8,763)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO AATREZEA
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY EEEERA 10 124,658 77,719
DIVIDENDS 3= 11 89,307 51,240
HK cents HK cents
Al A
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ARATEERBREZTEA
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF EEERER
THE COMPANY 12
Basic HAK 26.6 18.2
Diluted By N/A T iE N/A @A

BB )\FER



Consolidated Balance Sheet

SeEERER

(31 March 2008)
(Z2BN\F=A=1—A)

Notes 2008 2007
BiaE —EENE ZEELF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT FAT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment NG 13 268,353 202,895
Prepaid land lease payments TEfS AR E IR 14 72,971 66,056
Prepayments and deposits for property, M - BEREEZ
plant and equipment FENRIERIES 15 6,237 854
Goodwill 5l 16 26,112 =
Total non-current assets EMBEERE 373,673 269,805
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 18 123,508 52,002
Accounts and bills receivable FEURBR X I =R 19 146,582 58,593
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERFUR - e RHAEWGRIE 8,469 5,886
Pledged deposits BEIFER 20 - 5,518
Cash and cash equivalents RekFLFEIEAEE 20 274,585 252,648
Total current assets MENEEAE 553,144 374,647
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Accounts and bills payable FEBR R iR 21 55,599 29,662
Accrued liabilities and other payables FEE B 15 R H At FE < 5RIE 23 61,295 25,798
Tax payable e IR 16,851 13,922
Total current liabilities mEaERE 133,745 69,382
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEERE 419,399 305,265
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEABENRABAR 793,072 575,070
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RIEHIABE 24 12,903 1,252
Net assets BERE 780,169 573,818
EQUITY BR
Issued capital BEITIRA 25 4,997 4,270
Reserves & 27 725,204 543,928
Proposed final dividend R ARHARR B 11 49,968 25,620
Total equity BAREE 780,169 573,818

Chung Yuk Sing

EEH
Director

2F

Annual Report 2008

Chang Wen Hsiang
R
Director

EZE



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEERBEX

(Year ended 31 March 2008)
(BHEZZZN\F=A=1+—HILFH)

Share Statutory Exchange Asset Proposed
Issued premium  Capital  surplus fluctuation revaluation Retained final
Notes capital  account reserve reserve  reserve  reserve  profits  dividend Total
R EE Ex &E Rk
i ERAORE  BER ENHE RHEE NBRE ERRE BREN KERS &3t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tér ThEr TEr  TEr  TEr TR TEr TAr  TEn
(Note 27)  (Note 27)
(WiE27)  (W&E27)
At 1 April 2006 RZEEERA-A 4270 359,932 (229) 5731 1,737 3469 129808 25620 530,338
Surplus on revaluation RS 13 - - - - - 46N - - 46n
Deferred tax charged [RE A A 2% - - - - - (297) - - (297)
Exchange realignment 5 = - = - 12626 S S - 12626
Total income and expenses ERNERTRAN
recognised directly in equity Iz tas - - - - 12606 4375 = - 17,001
Profit for the year FRET] - - - - - - 71719 - 71719
Total income and expenses for the year P #58 - - - - 12606 4375 71119 - 94720
Transfer to reserve BAZHE - - - 5014 - - (54) - -
Final 2006 dividend declared BERZEEERERE - - - - - - - (25620) (25620)
Interim 2007 dividend ZZRHERERE 1 - = = = = - (25620) - (25620)
Proposed final 2007 dividend RE-ZSLERARE 1 - - - - - - (25620) 25620 -
At 31 March 2007 and RZZBLE=A=1-HEK
1 April 2007 ZEZtENA-A 4270 359,932* (229 10,945*  14,363* 7844% 151073* 25620 573818
Issue of shares g <o 25 727 112,654 - - - - - - 113,381
Surplus on revaluation BfhRR 13 = = = = = 5,634 = = 5,634
Deferred tax charged B ZERHR pl! = = = = - (1,093) = - (1,093)
Exchange realignment EHAE - - - - 28730 - - - 28730
Release of reserve upon the disposal ~ HE—TEBREEH
of a revalued property Ghimhn 13 - - - - - (370) 370 - -
Total income and expenses recognised B ARMERR A
directly in equity st - - - - 8730 417 370 - B
Profit for the year EREN - - - - - - 124,65 - 12465
Total income and expenses for the year  F RN 2% - - - - 870 4171 12508 - 157,929
Transfer to reserve BEDHE - S - 2500 = - (2,500) = =
Final 2007 dividend declared BER-ETHERERE = = = = = = - (25620) (25620)
Additional final 2007 dividend paid ~~ EIRNZZELEBIKERE 11 = = = = = - (4361) - (4361)
Interim 2008 dividend “ET/\ERERS 11 = = = - - - (34978) - (34978)
Proposed final 2008 dividend HE-SE\ERHRE 11 = = = = = - (49968) 49968 =
At 31 March 2008 RZEE\E=f=1—H 4997  472,586* (229 13445%  43093*  12,015% 184,294* 49968 780,169
@ These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$725,204,000 S ZERBREROERARNASBGAEEAEBR

mz&%e%«%ns,zm,ooo%n( —TTLF
543,928,000/ 7T) °

(2007: HK$543,928,000) in the consolidated balance sheet of the Group.

BB )\FER



(Year ended 31 March 2008)
(BHEZZT N\F=A=1+—HILFE)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Bank interest income
Gain on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment and prepaid land
lease payments
Write-off of items of property, plant
and equipment
Depreciation
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments

Increase in inventories

Increase in accounts and bills receivable

Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

Increase in accounts and bills payable

Increase in accrued liabilities and other payables

Cash generated from operations
Dividends paid

Hong Kong profits tax paid
Overseas tax refunded/(paid)

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment and prepaid land
lease payments, net

Purchases of items of property, plant and
equipment

Purchase of prepaid land lease payments

Acquisition of subsidiaries

Prepayments and deposits for property, plant
and equipment

Decrease/(increase) in non-pledged deposits
with original maturity of over three months
when acquired

Decrease in pledged deposits

Interest received

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
investing activities

REXBRELCHERE

B A AT A

RATIAE %
RITABUA
HEME - BEKRRE
THE RN LM
HERRz Y
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AR

e
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Gt
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Annual Report 2008

Notes

BRE
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13,15
14
28

20
20

2007
—ETF
HK$'000
FAT

86,482

(7,764)

819
26,310
1,698

107,545
(20,557)
(6,748)

(2,270)
16,377
9,376

103,723

(51,240)

(13,867)
977

39,593

(15,506)
(3,014)

(854)

(106,731)
4,587
7,764

(113,754)



(Year ended 31 March 2008)
(BHEZZT N\F=A=+—HILFE)

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Non-pledged time deposits with
original maturity of less than
three months when acquired

ReERRELEEER
s, (AD) FE
FNZ R KRS EEER
R e

FRZESRAS
/AR

RERRELEEBAZ
BEERD AT

e RIRITHETR

RUYEER RER M B DR
=8 A ZFEH
EHER

Notes

B aE

20

20

2007
—ETF
HK$°000
FAT

(74,161)
215,117
4,961

145,917

82,302

63,615

145,917
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Balance Sheet
BEEREX

(31 March 2008)
(ZFT/\F=A=+—H)

Notes 2008 2007
BiaE —EEN\F —TTHE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR ZI%E 17 43,368 43,368
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Due from subsidiaries FE R BT BB A )R8 17 487,395 236,865
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TBfRIE - Be Rk
Ho A e SR IE 170 1,728
Cash and cash equivalents RekREFMEER 20 280 106,883
Total current assets MEVEERE 487,845 345,476
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Accrued liabilities EErasE 23 100 140
Due to subsidiaries FERT BT A BIZRIE 17 1,490 =
1,590 140
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFRE 486,255 345,336
Net assets BESE 529,623 388,704
EQUITY B
Issued capital B EITIRA 25 4,997 4,270
Reserves (e 27 474,658 358,814
Proposed final dividend R R AR S 11 49,968 25,620
Total equity BARMRE 529,623 388,704

Chung Yuk Sing

EEH

Director

EE

Annual Report 2008

Chang Wen Hsiang
R
Director

EF



(31 March 2008)
TN\E=A=+—H)

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of the Company is
located at Units 0902-0903 and 0905-0906, 9/F, Tower B, Regent
Centre, 70 Ta Chuen Ping Street, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong
Kong.

The Group’s principal activities are the manufacture and trading of
sportswear and garments.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for buildings, which have
been measured at fair value. These financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand, except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as

the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2008. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being

the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All significant
intercompany transactions and balances within the Group are
eliminated on consolidation.

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year's financial statements. The adoption
of these new and revised standards and interpretations has had no
material effect on these financial statements.

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
HKAS 1 Amendment Capital Disclosures

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
HK(IFRIC)-Int 10

HK(FRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share

Transactions

Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment
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The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRSs are as

follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

This standard requires disclosures that enable users of the
financial statements to evaluate the significance of the
Group's financial instruments and the nature and extent

of risks arising from those financial instruments. The new
disclosures are included throughout the financial statements.
While there has been no effect on the financial position or
results of operations of the Group, comparative information
has been included/revised where appropriate.

Amendment to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements - Capital Disclosures

This amendment requires the Group to make disclosures

that enable users of the financial statements to evaluate

the Group's objectives, policies and processes for managing
capital. These new disclosures are shown in note 33 to the
financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

This interpretation requires HKFRS 2 to be applied to any
arrangement in which the Group cannot identify specifically
some or all of the goods or services received, for which equity
instruments are granted or liabilities (based on a value of the
Group's equity instruments) are incurred by the Group for a
consideration, and which appears to be less than the fair value
of the equity instruments granted or liabilities incurred. As the
Company has only issued equity instruments to the Group's
employees for their services provided in accordance with the
Company’s share option scheme, the interpretation has had
no effect on these financial statements.
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(d)

(e)

(f)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives

This interpretation requires that the date to assess whether an
embedded derivative is required to be separated from the host
contract and accounted for as a derivative is the date that the
Group first becomes a party to the contract, with reassessment
only if there is a change to the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows. As the Group has no embedded
derivative requiring separation from the host contract, the
interpretation has had no effect on these financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment

The Group has adopted this interpretation as of 1 April

2007, which requires that an impairment loss recognised in a
previous interim period in respect of goodwill or an investment
in either an equity instrument classified as available-for-sale or
a financial asset carried at cost is not subsequently reversed.
As the Group had no impairment losses previously reversed in
respect of such assets, the interpretation has had no impact
on the financial position or results of operations of the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 - Group and Treasury
Share Transactions

This interpretation requires arrangements whereby an
employee is granted rights to the Group’s equity instruments,
to be accounted for as an equity-settled scheme, even if the
Group acquires the instruments from another party, or the
shareholders provide the equity instruments needed. This
interpretation also addresses the accounting for share-based
payment transactions involving two or more entities within the
Group. The interpretation has had no material effect on these
financial statements.

(d)

(e)

()

FE(BRMBERERERS
g) -REBFEIFEMHARX
PTETHR

ZREER - AEBEHRIKREH
KT 2R - BARHERARITE
TARBAZEITANNFHMIES
TET ARz R WEEAHL
ZERRIENERERERFRE
TEM - ARNAEEYEFRTS
HWDRZBANITET & - Mz
BUHMBRRABZE

FE(ERMBERERERS
) -REE105 P HMBE
EREE
AEFECR_TTLFOA—BE
REZRE - MZaBE2SNA—
{7 B3R & HAFI o r B AR 2 R E
BRI BAAHLERSET AN
RN B 2 & BB B FTRERR 2R
EF1E - NMEEHERE - ARASE
BB A E Rt a5 B E R ERUE RS
1B SZRETeHARE %
ANEEKEELTE -

BR(ERTERERERES
g)-REENREAMER
HFREAR2F -KEREFR
RS

HARBENIRE MR TRBA
SEEE T AMENNZH - AA
BRI A T8l BN SE T
ATyhAKEmS —TEEXAR
RIBEAMB RS TA - ZHEREIN
HAY AR BAMERA LK
B ARRAA (3022 S BV & BRI o %
ER RN R BB RS A A S
R -

“EE\FFH



(31 March 2008)
(ZZZNF=A=+—H)

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

ZRES B SO B S R SRR T AL E AR A
B ARERNFET MRERT B BN RS

statements. R o
HKFRS 2 Amendments Share-based Payment — Vesting Conditions EBI GRS & At — B
and Cancellations' F2HAEET &M T dE
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations3 BB TSRS LR TEEHE
SB35 (K&1E35T)
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments' BBV mEEN KEHE
E85%

HKAS 1 (Revised)

Presentation of Financial Statements'
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The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of
these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application. So far, it has
concluded that while the adoption of HKFRS 8 and HKAS 1 may result
in new or amended disclosures, these new and revised HKFRSs should
not have any significant impact on the Group's results of operations
and financial position.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the
Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from
its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company's investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the
excess of the cost of the business combination over the Group’s
interest in the net fair value of the acquirees’ identifiable assets
acquired, and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed as at the
date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet as an asset, initially measured at cost and subsequently
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination
is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that

are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.
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Goodwill (continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount

of the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) is less than
the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of

in this circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than
goodwill

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories and financial
assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the income statement in the period in which it
arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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Impairment of non-financial assets other than
goodwill (continued)

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there

is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may

no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior

years. A reversal of such impairment loss is credited to the income
statement in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss
is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for
that revalued asset.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (ii) has an interest in the
Group that gives it significant influence over the Group; or (i)
has joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;

(© the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(d) the party is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group;
(e) the party is a close member of the family of any individual

referred to in (a) or (d);

(f) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting
power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any
individual referred to in (d) or (e); or

(9) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
the employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a related
party of the Group.
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Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use. Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the
future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of
an item of property, plant and equipment, and where the cost of the
item can be measured reliably, the expenditure is capitalised as an
additional cost of that asset or as a replacement.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair
value of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying
amount. Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment are
dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the total
of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual asset
basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the income statement.
Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to the income
statement to the extent of the deficit previously charged. On disposal
of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred to
retained profits as a movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost or valuation of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 2% to 15%
Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms or 20%,
whichever is shorter
Plant and machinery 10% to 20%
Furniture, fixtures, equipment 20%
and motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost or valuation of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
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Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in the income statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are accounted
for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of
the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the minimum
lease payments and recorded together with the obligation, excluding
the interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets
held under capitalised finance leases are included in property, plant
and equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms
and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of
such leases are charged to the income statement so as to provide a
constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating leases are
charged to the income statement on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated
at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit
or loss, directly attributable transaction costs. The Group determines
the classification of its financial assets after initial recognition and,
where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at the
balance sheet date.
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Investments and other financial assets (continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Such
assets are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees that are an integral part of the effective interest

rate and transaction costs. Gains and losses are recognised in the
income statement when the loans and receivables are derecognised or
impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organised
financial markets is determined by reference to quoted market bid
prices at the close of business at the balance sheet date.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and
receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of
the asset is reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance
account. The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in the
income statement. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to
the Group.
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Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance
account. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
in the income statement, to the extent that the carrying value of the
asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.

In relation to accounts and bills receivable, a provision for impairment
is made when there is objective evidence (such as the probability

of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and
significant changes in the technological, market economic or legal
environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor) that the
Group will not be able to collect all of the amounts due under the
original terms of an invoice. The carrying amount of the receivables is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Impaired debts are
derecognised when they are assessed as uncollectible.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised where:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

o the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from the
asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full
without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset and either (a) has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form
of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables and other payables are
initially stated at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs
and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost. The related interest expense is
recognised within “finance cost” in the income statement.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the amortisation
process.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to
be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and cash equivalents

comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, which
are not restricted as to use.
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Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the balance sheet date of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in the income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in the income statement, or in equity if it relates to items
that are recognised in the same or a different period directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

o where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance
sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Conversely, previously unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and

are recognised to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.
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Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured
reliably, on the following bases:

(i) from the sale of goods and samples, when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership,
nor effective control over the goods sold; and

(ii) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Employee benefits

Staff retirement schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme"”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions

are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries

and are charged to the income statement as they become payable

in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

In addition, the Group also operates a defined contribution retirement
benefits scheme (the “Retirement Scheme”) for those employees who
are eligible to participate in the Retirement Scheme. Contributions

to the Retirement Scheme are charged to the income statement as
incurred. The Retirement Scheme operates in a similar way to the MPF
Scheme, except that when an employee leaves the Retirement Scheme
before his/her interest in the Group’s employer contributions vests
fully, the ongoing contributions payable by the Group are reduced by
the relevant amount of the forfeited employer contributions.

The employees of the subsidiaries which operate in Mainland China
are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to
make contributions for its employees who are registered as permanent
residents in Mainland China. The contributions are charged to the
income statement as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.
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Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate
allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the balance
sheet, until they have been approved by the shareholders in a
general meeting. When these dividends have been approved by the
shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions are
initially recorded using the functional currency rates ruling at the date
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All differences are taken
to the income statement. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the balance sheet
date, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into

the presentation currency of the Company at the exchange rates
ruling at the balance sheet date and, their income statements are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are included

in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign entity,
the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

Annual Report 2008

B
EEFZRRNZRAREBEEEREBRT
BABABOREGN 2B LOE - BEE
BREBRASHAERL - BREABRENE
REHAE R SRR AR E °

BN AR B AR SRR M AREEA
AREEEEIRT IS - BT R EH
IR R B R RS o Eit - R HIR B
ERIRN RE IR AR ER AR E

SN

IR IABTTEH - BILTIARRZ
DR EREE - AEESBEREETHER
SUREEE M Eﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁAZ
NS DAL ERIEA o SNERZ H 1N
ﬁi%ﬂ%z%%%%E <EOEE o LAGNEE
RENEREERRBREEAGERAN
DR EREXTEHNRE - PIAERT AN
mk o MEKBENAENIFERIAR
EEW?X%H%ET@“ PASNEE IR N
FEAENIEEHEBRATEEEZ
HHE e RS E -

ETEINIBARLIFABTRYER
o Fﬁ?%ﬁ%ﬁ’m$§%2§ﬁ&
QE&QFQEEEWET@ - FA/N

2ERE EH&Zm%E‘J&EWﬂD%IFi’:JE
T#Zﬁ%ﬁ RRER ZFHEET AERL
RENER - HE ﬁ%ﬁﬁ% REAFrHE
REBEZRFEHINEHNELCRATE
RIS A HERR ©

HFEEReRERME - BIMNBARZ
BeneEkiene A ERERKRE
RABTT - FNEINTER A2 KEHER
ERFAMEPHERBRERET -



(31 March 2008)
(ZZZNF=A=+—H)

The preparation of the Group'’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions

that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting
date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgement

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or whether the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the Group has

to exercise judgement in the area of asset impairment, particularly

in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred that may affect the
asset value, or such an event affecting the asset value has not been in
existence; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported
by the net present value of future cash flows, which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow projections
including whether these cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected by management
to determine the level of impairment, including the discount rates or
the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could have
a material effect on the net present value used in the impairment test.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.

Estimation of fair value of its building

As described in note 13, the buildings were revalued at the balance
sheet date on a market value existing state basis by independent
professional valuers. Such valuations were based on certain
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and might materially
differ from the actual results. In making the judgments, the Group
considers information from current prices in an active market for
similar properties and uses assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at each balance sheet date.
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Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 March
2008 was HK$26,112,000 (2007: Nil). More details are set out in note
16.

Segment information is presented by way of the Group’s primary
segment reporting basis, by geographical segment. No further
business segment information is presented as the Group is solely
engaged in the manufacture and trading of sportswear and garments.

Each of the Group’s geographical segments, based on the location

of customers (the destination of sales), represents a strategic

business unit that offers products to customers located in different
geographical areas which are subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of the other geographical segments. The Group's
customer-based geographical segments are as follows:

(@) Mainland China
(b) Japan

(© South Korea
(d) Hong Kong

(e) Others

In addition, segment assets and capital expenditure are further
analysed by the geographical location of the assets (the origin of
sales), where the Group’s assets are located in different geographical
areas from its customers and segment revenue from external
customers or segment assets are 10% or more of the Group's total
amount. There are two asset-based geographical segments, namely,
Mainland China and Hong Kong.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
IS HRRME(E)

(31 March 2008)
(ZZEZN\F=A=+—H)

4, SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, PTEER®)
() Geographical segments based on the location of (i) REFMEHESE
customers
The following tables present revenue, profit and certain TREVWHE-_ZSEZEN\ER-ZZ
asset, liability and expenditure information for the Group’s tF=ZA=+—HIFEREFF
geographical segments for the years ended 31 March 2008 EiE DB EEWA BRI RE
and 2007. TEE BERAXZER -
Group - 2008 TEE-—2ENF
Mainland South Hong
China Japan Korea Kong Others Consolidated

PEAR A% HE gE  HMHE )
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TR TR TiEm TR Tz

Segment revenue: AEEFWA
Sales to external customers HETHREP 474553 147331 58,891 25380 154332 860487
Segment results PEEE 105,589 33,425 14,812 6,779 41,751 202,356
Interest and other unallocated income IS REMARA BEMA 18,678
Unallocated expenses KORER (80,375)
Profit before tax BRELATR A 140,659
Tax HE (16,001)
Profit for the year attributable to RARREREA
equity holders of the Company FEEEERET 124,658
Segment assets NEEE 326,458 61,811 24,421 10,850 147,286 570,826
Unallocated assets AOMEE 355,991
926,817
Segment liabilities PEaE 23,046 2,589 904 538 28,522 55,599
Unallocated liabilities KARaE 91,049
146,648
Other segment information: At A EER
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 14,262 4,428 1,770 763 4,638 25,861
Unallocated amounts S 7,470
33,331
Capital expenditure ERRR 5,819 1,806 122 311 1,892 10,550
Unallocated amounts APESE 6,610
17,160
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BRI (E)

(31 March 2008)

(ZEZEN\F=A=+—H)

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4., DEER®)
() Geographical segments based on the location of (i) BREEMEMESEE)
customers (continued)
Group — 2007 REER-—TTLF
Mainland South Hong
China Japan Korea Kong Others  Consolidated
B K A [ B AR e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TExL TAT TATL TEL TAT
Segment revenue: e N
Sales to external customers HEFHREP 297,007 115353 33,079 14,621 58953 519,103
Segment results PERE 77,008 28,930 7421 3,858 14,874 132,097
Interest and other unallocated income ~ FI S REMARA BEMA 8,085
Unallocated expenses ROEER (53,700)
Profit before tax B AR 86,482
Tax i (8,763)
Profit for the year attributable to FRAREREA
equity holders of the Company FEEEEER 77,719
Segment assets PREE 220,437 71,534 18,737 9,922 41,838 362,468
Unallocated assets RAREE 281,984
644,452
Segment liabilities nEEE 10,729 10,249 2,106 1,531 10,047 34,662
Unallocated liabilities APEBE 35,972
70,634
Other segment information: HihAEER :
Depreciation and amortisation FERESE 11,541 4,481 1,285 568 2,290 20,165
Unallocated amounts AOEEE 7,843
28,008
Capital expenditure ERAR 17,077 6,630 1,901 840 3,389 29,837
Unallocated amounts ROEEH 824
30,661
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B MRMET(E)

(31 March 2008)
(ZEZEN\F=A=+—81)

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. DEER @
(ii) Geographical segments based on the location of (i) BREEMEHEIE
assets
Mainland
China Hong Kong Consolidated
B K BE &g wE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FAET
Group - 2008 TEE-—BENE
Segment assets as at RZEEN\F=HA
31 March 2008 =+—BZoEEE 461,340 109,486 570,826
Unallocated assets ROLEE 355,991
926,817
Capital expenditure BRI 10,550 = 10,550
Unallocated amounts RO EEE 6,610
17,160
Group — 2007 REE-—ZTTLF
Segment assets as at RZEELF=HA
31 March 2007 =+—BZREEE 312,099 50,369 362,468
Unallocated assets ROBLEE 281,984
644,452
Capital expenditure BARRFXE 27,441 2,396 29,837
Unallocated amounts RO eEE 824
30,661

BB )\FER



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M ERRMEE(F)
(31 March 2008)
(ZEZEN\F=A=+—81)

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net
invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and trade
discounts. All significant intra-group transactions have been eliminated

on consolidation.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gains is as

BRI ~ Hit AR Wz
ERWABIREE Y LB - TIEHRER
ERFMREERR RTFE - AEE

ARIEMBEARZERNGA KB Y

REBEEWA - HUA RS 2 D

follows: PN
2008 2007
—EEN\F ZETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Revenue BERA
Sale of goods BEmiHE 860,487 519,103
Other income Hithlg A
Bank interest income HRITFEHA 5,933 7,764
Others EAh 501 321
6,434 8,085
Gain &
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME - R KEE
plant and equipment and prepaid MBS LA E
land lease payments IR 2 Ww 12,244 =
Other income and gains E AU A Rz 18,678 8,085

Annual Report 2008



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B MRMET(E)

(31 March 2008)

(—2T/\F=A=+-A)

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6.

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BRBE AR R
NEEBRADE IR (GEA) THE
15

2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA 658,131 387,006
Auditors’ remuneration ZE RS 1,450 1,100
Depreciation (Note 13)* e (BfIE13)* 31,316 26,310
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments T b T & SRR
(Note 14)* (BizE14)* 2,015 1,698
Employee benefits expenses (excluding EERAZE (TREES
directors’ remuneration — Note 7): B — FitsE7)
Wages and salaries TERF® 146,643 97,237
Pension scheme contributions (defined RSB
contribution schemes) (ERRMHRETE)) 7,200 3,717
Less: Forfeited contributions B BRI R (128) (85)
Net pension scheme contributions RIS EIHFUFE 7,072 3,632
Total employee benefits expenses* R BEA 153,715 100,869
Minimum lease payments under operating T REFEEEE 2
leases in respect of land and buildings* SRS 3,585 2,250
Write-off of items of property, plant and Wi - BE REEEE
equipment - 819
Gain on disposal of items of property, plantand H&¥% - HEMEEEE
equipment and prepaid land lease payments NI A EFRIE 2 e (12,244) =
Foreign exchange differences, net EH = HH R 1,325 4,022

@ Included in the respective balances are the following amounts which BIEEHRTEIEA T A EXFIRER
are also included in cost of inventories sold disclosed above: EFERAZ 2

2008 2007

—EENFE ZETLF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET BT

Depreciation e 17,052 14,957

Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments TEA A b FH & SRR 5 1,128 920

Employee benefits expenses EERAFAX 128,903 83,474
Minimum lease payments under operating T RIEFEERE

leases in respect of land and buildings SIEE ST 2,378 2,028

BB )\FER



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

\

MR E(E)
(31 March 2008)
(ZEZEN\F=A=+—81)

7. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 7.

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and Section 161 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

EEME

AEEEENSRETAE

BERZMAER

AEEF ETRR LRI REER

BIEPIZFE 161 FRIKEL T

Group
AEM
2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FHT
Fees ik 360 360
Other emoluments: HEmpe
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EUREYEF 4,671 3,120
Discretionary bonus BYIBIEAL 1,344 620
Pension scheme contributions BB ETEIHR 236 180
6,251 3,920
6,611 4,280
(@) Independent non-executive directors (@) BIYFHITEE

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during

FANTEILFNTES 2SN

the year were as follows: T
2008 2007
—EENEF —EELF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THERT FHT
Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho PREZELE 120 120
Mr. Li Chi Chung X 120 120
Mr. Cheng Yung Hui, Tony B LA 4 A 120 120
360 360

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2007: Nil).
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(31 March 2008)
(ZZZNF=A=+—H)

(b) Executive directors (b) #FITEE
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits Discretionary scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
e 2R Bk

he BNER WAL TR Meas
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T T FEr T T
2008 —EENE
Executive directors: WIES
Mr. Chung Yuk Sing EEFLE
Ms. Tsang Sau Fan BLEFRL
Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying AN
Ms. Chen Li Ying REFZT
Mr. Chung Tung Sau EMHEE
2007 S a3
Executive directors: WIES
Ms. Tsang Sau Fan LEFRL = 1,300 200 72 1,572
Mr. Chung Yuk Sing EEFLE = 1,040 240 60 1,340
Mr. Chung Tung Sau EMHLE = 780 180 48 1,008
- 3,120 620 180 3,920
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or REEAWEFMNEEHEXRE
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. WEE NS 2 28k -
The directors’ remuneration shown above does not include LM RESHE W RBERE
the estimated monetary value of the Group’s owned premises NRIITESES A LE([EE
provided rent-free to an executive director, Mr. Chung Yuk EDRHEENAEEBENR 2
Sing (“Mr. Chung”), during the year. The estimated rental HEtEE  BHEZTTN\F=A
value of such accommodation was HK$378,000 (2007: =+—HIEFE - ZEB2EFHE
HK$654,000) for the year ended 31 March 2008. B /378,000 (T F :

654,000/ 7T) °

“EE\FFH



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BRI (E)

(31 March 2008)
(ZEZEN\F=A=+—81)

8.  FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 8.

The five highest paid employees during the year included four (2007:
three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 7
above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining one (2007: two)
non-director, highest paid employee for the year are set out below:

hEBREFHESR

FR - REAREHMEERENE(—F
THE: 2)EF  ARRSHMOH
EAEEXHETHE - NER - #T—
Z(—FTLF  WE)BEMEHIES
BENMEFIENT :

Group

rEE
2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET Tt
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e REREYER 825 1,132
Discretionary bonus BIBTEAL 130 153
Pension scheme contributions RIKESFTEIHR 50 76
1,005 1,361

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the designated bands is as follows:

MeNnTiEcHBEN RS MEESRES
RN :

Number of employees

EERE
2008 2007
—EEBNEF —ETAF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £%1,000,000% 7T - 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 722 1,500,000/ 7T 1 -
1 2
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(31 March 2008)
(ZZZNF=A=+—H)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5% (2007:
17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations and
practices in respect thereof.

SWEBTHEERIX AR AF] (“EN (Shantou)”), Shantou SEZ Far East
(International) Garments Factory Co., Ltd. (“FE (Shantou)”), #3 Cil
98) BIKARAR (“YM (Shantou)”) and & ClisE) RXKABR
AF] ("YY (Shantou)”) are entitled to be exempted from corporate
income tax in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") for the first
two profit-making years and a 50% reduction in corporate income tax
for the succeeding three years. Moreover, under the relevant tax laws
and regulations in Mainland China, EN (Shantou), FE (Shantou), YM
(Shantou) and YY (Shantou) may set off losses incurred by them in a
financial year against profits made by them in the succeeding financial
year or years, subject to a maximum of five financial years.

According to the confirmation obtained by the Group from the PRC
tax bureau, the first profit-making year of both EN (Shantou) and FE
(Shantou) was the year ended 31 December 2002, and the first profit-
making year of YY (Shantou) was the year ended 31 December 2005.

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the Tenth National
People’s Congress passed the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC
(the “New PRC Tax Law") which took effect on 1 January 2008. The
PRC income tax rate is unified to 25% for all enterprises. The State
Council of the PRC passed an implementation guidance note (the
“Implementation Guidance”) on 26 December 2007, which sets out
details of how existing preferential income tax rates will be adjusted
to the standard rate of 25%.

BERMNBHAFRERBEENGFER
FRRMIZ175%(ZFFLF : 17.5%)F
I o HAbh 5 R TS AR - Al
REAEBEBAHERRNIREEAR &
PRENREFIAE M RAE -

WEmEXHKXERRQA ([EXCL
$8) 1) IR R R IR (B ) IR
BRAR(MEROLEER) ) - #<OlEE) &
RAEBAR([#ECLEE) ) RAECLER)
HUXABR AR (THECOLER) DR RS
MERFFENPEARLIME(HE])
DEMBHR - WREER=FERLHR
B ZATHREMRER - W RIZEH
B BIRERBERRA - BECWEE) -
EROWER) ~ MECWEE) RARE CWEE) 7
RER—EMBEEEE 2BE - KiEE
MER—EXZ AR BEE 2@ A - Bk
SIS HEBAEMBRFEE

RIRAREEE T AT 2 R - Ex
ClsE) RERCLE) M EERFNFEHS A
BE—EZT_F+-A=1+—HILFE -
MRECLE)NEEANFEAHEZ
THET_A=+—BILFE -

RZZZTLF=A+"8 ' B+EZEA
RREREFAXNZSBBTFRECEMS
POR([FBE]D)  HBUER ST NFE—
A—BHEM - FrEEZFRAMEHELSR
—R25%  RZEZELF+ZA=+~
A FREESRARR—HDEHEES (B
&5l FEYIE SR BN B ERT X
FHREZELERIS%IITE
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(ZZZNEF=A=+—H)

For enterprises which were established before the publication of the
New PRC Tax Law and were entitled to preferential treatments of a
reduced corporate income tax rate (“CIT rate”) granted by relevant
tax authorities, the new CIT rate might be gradually increased from
the preferential rate to 25% within 5 years after the effective date
of the New PRC Tax Law on 1 January 2008. For the regions that
enjoy a reduced CIT rate at 15%, the rate would gradually increase
to 18% for 2008, 20% for 2009, 22% for 2010, 24% for 2011 and
25% for 2012 according to the grandfathering rules stipulated in
the Implementation Guidance and related circular. Enterprises that
are currently entitled to exemptions or reductions from the standard
income tax rate for a fixed term may continue to enjoy such treatment
until the fixed term expires.

Current tax charge for the year: REEHIBL M ¢
Hong Kong BE
Elsewhere Hebin

Underprovision of current tax in respect of BATFERERETE
prior years

Deferred (Note 24) IRAE (Fi5E24)

Total tax charge for the year REERHIAZ N 4R
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BRI EERMSREBMAIKY - WEHB
MERAT ISR TR R EMBHEERT
EHEME - IEEFEH RN
TEMESREERZB (I T N\F—
A—H)BE5FNEREIEEI5% - hEH
15% M REMSHEMEMS @ BRIES
PGB E it 48 1) K2 A 38 ph g sBE < B
TEMSHEBHIR=_TZTNF - =&
ZhEFE —T—FTF —_T——FK-_F
——FEREIEINE18% * 20% ~ 22% *
24% K%25% ° B BI= AR — B EE B
SIEEMSHERENREMNTE - A4
BEZHZIAMNS  BEEZBRETHRER
ALk o

Group
REME
2007
—EELF
HK$'000
FHT

5,229
782

3,599
(847)

8,763



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B MRMET(E)

(31 March 2008)
(ZEZEN\F=A=+—81)

10.

TAX (continued) 0.
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax using

the statutory rates for the tax jurisdictions in which the Company

and majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax charge at the
effective tax rates is as follows:

B =)
ERRAK AT REAZSHBA TR
HOBIRS T AR A R K E 2 R B AT
T2 BB S BRI S R 5 BB B
L7 RHWT -

Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FHT
Profit before tax R 752 A4 A 140,659 86,482
Tax at the applicable rate to profit in the REBRNB R AR 2 EA
tax jurisdictions concerned FRiST T8 2 TR 25,160 15,330
Lower tax rate due to tax holiday IS ER I 2 BRI X (7,872) (10,458)
Lower tax rate for specific provinces &R (7 2 BIEF = - (1,601)
Income not subject to tax BERHWA (3,078) (820)
Expenses not deductible for tax TR AR B 687 324
Adjustments in respect of current tax of HBTFERIBED 2T
previous years - 3,599
Tax losses not recognised RIERTIEEE 223 2,024
Others Hth 881 365
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate BEAEEERBEERAE
HIESE 16,001 8,763
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO 10. XA RAREREABLFER

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2008 includes a profit of HK$92,497,000
(2007: HK$3,098,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company (Note 27).

F
BE—_ZTEZNF=ZA=+—HILFER
NAIRERE ARLEZREEN2EEF
92,497,000/ 7t (ZEZF 4 : 3,098,000
BIL)  ERAR R M HRE AR (M
$E27) o

BB )\FER



(31 March 2008)
(ZZZNEF=A=+—H)

2007
—ETLF
HK$'000
FAT
Interim — HK7 cents (2007: HK6 cents) per RRERRR B — B AR mAR 7 AL
ordinary share based on 499,680,000 (ZZ2Z+F 6 8)
(2007: 427,000,000) shares in issue IEE 31T 499,680,000 A%
(ZZZ 4 : 427,000,000 %)
M E 25,620
Proposed final — HK10 cents (2007: HK6 cents) ik & HiR% B— 2 SR L@ A%
per ordinary share based on 499,680,000 10 781l (ZFFLF - 6 81l)
(2007: 427,000,000) shares in issue IEE 31T 499,680,000 A%
(ZZZ 4 : 427,000,000 %)
M E 25,620
Additional 2007 final dividend ZETLFHEINRHRE -
51,240

The proposed final dividend for the year is based on the number of
shares in issue as at the reporting date, and is subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

The additional 2007 final dividend represents final dividend payable to
shares issued subsequent to the approval of the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2007 by the directors.

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company
for the year of HK$124,658,000 (2007: HK$77,719,000), and the
weighted average number of 469,297,000 (2007: 427,000,000)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

No diluted earnings per share is presented for both current and last
years as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence
during these years.
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RER 2 BRI BTN FRRE BB %
TRMEBFHE - WRFARBBRRNE
ERRBERGHER - TAEE -

—EREFRINAEREEESRILARS
—EE+F A=+ —HLIFEREME
HERBENBEETRM ZARIRE

BREARZFTIIREFANERR R L RBE
f&% #E 5 B A FE 1k & F) 124,658,000 7 7T
(ZZTZ+%F : 77,719,000 7T) * LARE
N B 3£ 17469,297,000 % ( — T T L4 :
427,000,000 A% ) 3 i@ % 2 D0 AE 15 HET
g °

AEEREFENOEECHEZE T
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MR RMETE(E)
(31 March 2008)
(ZZEZN\F=A=+—H)

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group
31 March 2008

13. 9% BERRE
EE
—®E/\F=A=+-H

Furniture,

fixtures,

equipment

Leasehold Plant and and motor
Buildings improvements machinery vehicles Total

e HE#B
BT MEEE BERRE RERAE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr TEr TER TEx TET
Cost or valuation: PRk fAME -
At beginning of year E3] 100,032 39,178 101,531 31,314 272,055
Additions "B 3,021 2,761 6,246 3,629 15,657
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEHBAR (FizEs)

(Note 28) 54,000 3,377 4,150 - 61,527
Disposals HE (2,700) (1,049) - (444) (4,193)
Surplus on revaluation BHRH 1,863 - - - 1,863
Exchange realignment PR A% 10,970 2,650 5,463 1,415 20,498
At 31 March 2008 RZEZN\F=A=1-H 167,186 46,917 117,390 35,914 367,407

Analysis of cost or valuation: AR BEA :
At cost R E - 46,917 117,390 35,914 200,221
At 31 March 2008 valuation BR=FZ\E=A=1—H
ZfhE 167,186 - - - 167,186
167,186 46,917 117,390 35,914 367,407
Accumulated depreciation: ZRNE
At beginning of year £ - 14,305 42,433 12,422 69,160
Provided during the year FREE 3,819 7,682 13,889 5,926 31,316
Disposals HE (48) (944) - (414) (1,406)
Wirite-back of revaluation EfhEH 3.771) - - - 3.17)
Exchange realignment PR A% - 845 2,348 562 3,755
At 31 March 2008 RZEZN\F=A=1-H - 21,888 58,670 18,496 99,054
Net book value: REFE
At 31 March 2008 RZEZN\F=A=1-H 167,186 25,029 58,720 17,418 268,353

—ET\FER



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BRI (E)

(31 March 2008)

(ZEZEN\F=A=+—H)

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13. Y% - BEERRXRE 2

Group rEE
31 March 2007 —E22+&=A=+—H
Furniture,
fixtures,
equipment
Leasehold Plant and and motor
Buildings  improvements machinery vehicles Total
HE BEHE-
BT mEEE RS E EERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AL AT TET AT
Cost or valuation: AR :
At beginning of year &3] 86,502 36,972 99,230 26,219 248,923
Additions B 8,567 7,250 1,798 4,479 22,094
Surplus on revaluation E 1,889 - - - 1,889
Write-off HisH - (6,076) (1,557) = (7,633)
Exchange realignment PR A% 3,074 1,032 2,060 616 6,782
At 31 March 2007 RZZZ+F=A=+-H 100,032 39,178 101,531 31,314 272,055
Analysis of cost or valuation: AT EAT :
At cost N - 39,178 101,531 31,314 172,023
At 31 March 2007 valuation ER-ZZtE=R=1—H
ZIhME 100,032 - - = 100,032
100,032 39,178 101,531 31,314 272,055
Accumulated depreciation: ZRME
At beginning of year E1) - 13,513 30,331 8,069 51,913
Provided during the year FREE 2,783 5,920 13,330 4277 26,310
Write-off HisH - (5,257) (1,557) = (6,814)
Write-back of revaluation EhERE (2,783) = = = (2,783)
Exchange realignment PR A% - 129 329 76 534
At 31 March 2007 RZZZ+F=A=+-H - 14,305 42,433 12,422 69,160
Net book value: BEFE
At 31 March 2007 RZZZ+F=A=+-H 100,032 24,873 59,098 18,892 202,895

Annual Report 2008



(31 March 2008)
(ZZZNF=A=+—H)

The Group'’s buildings were revalued individually at 31 March 2008 by
Greater China Appraisal Limited, independent professionally qualified
valuers, at an aggregate open market value of HK$167,186,000,
based on their existing use. A revaluation surplus of HK$5,634,000
(2007: HK$4,672,000) resulting therefrom has been credited to the
asset revaluation reserve.

Had these buildings been carried at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation, their carrying amounts would have been
HK$153,944,000 (2007: HK$92,676,000).

As at 31 March 2008, one (2007: two) of the Group's properties with
a net book value of HK$132,000 (2007: HK$2,526,000) has been
provided as rent-free accommodation to an executive director of the
Company during the year. In addition, a disposed property had been
provided to the same director as a rent-free accommodation until its
disposal in January 2008. Asset revaluation reserve of HK$370,000
was transferred to the retained profits upon its disposal.

AEBZEFHBYEESERMGEME
EIHERATR-_BEENE=A=+—
Bz H & g A QBT EEE RIS -
& H#£1E167,186,0008 T - EfFTEER
25,634,000 7C( =2 T4 1 4,672,000
BIT)EDRIFFABEEGFHE

i L ih REFIRE SRR REITE
FIBR - HERMEE R FE A 153,944,00078 7T
(ZZEZE+5 : 92,676,000/ 7T) °

R-ZTETENF=ZA=+—08 AEEH
F-B(ZEEEF: ZH)EAFE
132,000 L (ZZEF 4 : 2,526,000/
L) ZMERFAREFARQE] —BHIT
EEERMMETRE - I —THELEWE
RHETR—REZESERERETE  EEZD
¥R N\F-ALERL - EZWE
&% - 370,000 T2 B EE M FHEER
BB RMNA -

Group

rEH
2007
—ETLEF
HK$'000
FHT
Carrying amount at beginning of year FHRAE 59,584
Additions V=T 8,567
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 28) sk B AR (MiaE 28) =
Amortisation recognised during the year G A R 8 (1,698)
Disposals HE -
Exchange realignment T 5, S EE 1,417
Carrying amount at 31 March R=A=+—BZEEE 67,870

Current portion included in prepayments, STABMNRIE  Rek

deposits and other receivables HAb U R 2 BNEREE 5 (1,814)
Non-current portion FEBNERFL > 66,056

“EE\FFH
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(ZZZNF=A=+—H)

An analysis of carrying amounts of prepaid land lease payments of the
Group at the balance sheet date is as follows:

Long term leases outside Hong Kong EREINZ KAIFRA
Medium term leases in Hong Kong BEBRE A ZH AL
Medium term leases outside Hong Kong BERBRINZ R EIFRAY

Certain of the Group’s prepaid land lease payments with a net book
value of HK$1,536,000 (2007: HK$12,250,000) in aggregate have
been provided as rent-free accommodation to an executive director of
the Company during the year.

In addition, a disposed prepaid land lease payments had been
provided to the same directors as a rent-free accommodation until its
disposal in January 2008.

During the year, a subsidiary of the Company has entered into a
contract with an independent third party for the construction of a new
factory at a consideration of HK$15,640,000. As at the balance sheet
date, HK$6,237,000 had been paid by the Group and was classified
as “Prepayments and deposits for property, plant and equipment”
and the remaining balance of HK$9,403,000 had been included as
commitment as detailed in note 31 to the financial statements.

As at 31 March 2007, prepayments and deposits for property, plant
and equipment included a deposit of HK$854,000 for the acquisition
of a computer system from a related company. A final amount

of HK$115,000 was paid by the Group and the computer system

had been accepted by and delivered to the Group during the year.
Accordingly, the total amount of HK$969,000 has been transferred to
“Property, plant and equipment” during the year (Note 32(b)).
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RAEREEE - AEEEMLAER
B EEEATET

2007
e
HK$'000
T

1,554
23,578
42,738

67,870

FA-AKEEETHEEFEAGH
1,536,000/ 70 (= F T4 : 12,250,000
ABIL) 2 A L E TR F AR
RARF—BPTESZRMAER -

AN - —IHE R EEN DA EFURR
FR-—BEFEREEE  BEZMER
—ETN\F-AHERL -

FN - ARENBRARE—BBIE=F
I —DAEH - LAR{E 15,640,000 T8
BE—EFHE c REEBERA  ~5H
B3 146,237,000/ T © MABRIEE D
HARIME  BEREHE 22BN REREZ
% | > M#RFX9,403,00078 7T Bllst A VE A
& B RUSIRERNTEST -

N_BT+E=A=+—HB Y% &
EREHEzEMNFERESBERR—
il B8 2 1 B Uk B B B R 4t 2 12 854,000
PBIT o AEE B X T & 4XFIE 115,000
T MEMRAERFANEAEBER R
RITFAREE - Bt - 42%8969,000% T
ERFENEBRE[ME - BB K&
#£32(b)) °



(31 March 2008)
(ZZZNF=A=+—H)

Group
rEH
HK$'000
FHET

Cost at 1 April 2007 RZZBZELFMA—RBZKAE =

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 28)

Cost and carrying amount at 31 March 2008

The Group's goodwill was wholly allocated to a cash-generating unit
engaged in the manufacture and trading of sportswear and garments
(the “Unit"). The recoverable amount of the Unit has been determined
from the value in use, which is calculated with reference to cash flow
projections based on a five-year period financial budgets approved

by senior management. The financial budgets are prepared reflecting
actual and prior year performance and development expectations.
The key assumptions for the cash flow projections are the budgeted
gross margins which is the average gross profit margin achieved in
the year immediately before budgeted years and the discount rate

of 5%, which is before tax and reflects specific risks relating to the
Unit. The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the Unit is
30% for the first two years and 10% for the succeeding three years.
The directors believe that any reasonably possible change in any of
these assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying amount
of the Unit to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount. Since the
recoverable amount of the Unit is higher than its carrying amount,
the directors consider there was no impairment of the goodwill at the
balance sheet date.

Unlisted investments, at cost

WM B AR (Pifat2s)

R-EZN\F=A=1+—BZRAENREE

FEMERE @ BRAE

26,112

26,112

AEEHEEHNBBRNETEDRENKREER
BEZHReEESM([ZEM]) - ZBEM AR
Bl EREIREEREEEE - MEAEERRE
HEREBABEM Y AFPHIFAEMIEN 2R
SREFE - REEZREDIRRER - BF
RENEMER - ReREBR 2 EEBRRBH
BEZENXR(NEEREFENZFEMERZ
SFHEMEK) AR E5% (TR M MR EEZ E
UAEBZEERR) - RS AFRRZEM 2
BREMBEL AMFERELR30% - MR =F8I
310% - EEHE - FAZSRRAUEA R
Re88 BT eEBREMAREEBHE
RO S - HRZEMZ TR EHEESNELR
HE EFRANEEABERAHELELIUMN
B

Company
ARAFE
2007
—ETAF
HK$'000
FHET
43,368
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The balances with subsidiaries approximate to their fair values and are

unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

The table below lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries, would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

Particulars of subsidiaries of the Company are as follows:

Name

DAEH

Jespar Age Limited

Eagle Nice (EAG) Limited
Bx(BX&E)BRAR
(formerly known as
Eagle Nice Development
Limited)
(AIBEXEREBRAR)

Far East (EAG) Limited
ER(EXKE)ERDA
(formerly known as
Far East (International)
Garment Limited)
(RIfBEER (BB
BRAR)

EN (Shantou) (Note (b))
JEZCILsE) (B (b))

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
TR,
BRREREH

British Virgin Islands
("BVI")

RERLE
((XBRZS])

Hong Kong
20

Hong Kong
20

PRC/Mainland China
HE /B KR

Annual Report 2008

Nominal value
of issued
share/paid-up
registered
capital
ERITRA
HE/#R
&R

US$1,000
1,000% 7T

Ordinary HK$2;
Non-voting deferred
HK$10,000
(Note (a))
LERIETL
BERFERTER
10,0007 7T
(FiizE(a))

Ordinary HK$2;
Non-voting deferred
HK$10,000
(Note (a))
LERIETL
BERFERTER
10,0007 7T
(FitzE(a))

HK$9,500,000
9,500,000/ 7T

BB AR AR REER - RENRAE

TRIMAEEHE AR REFTERR
R RERRHAEBFRAEEEERNY
B AEREEFECIEZND - &
E=EARA  HEMHMBRARNERE
SEREBENTTE °

ARBZHBARFBAOT

Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company
KRFE
RERDL Principal
Direct Indirect  activities

B# B  IEXE

100 - Investment holding
REAR

= 100 Manufacture and trading
of sportswear and
garments
YEREE
EERRAK

= 100 Manufacture and trading
of sportswear and
garments
YEREE
EERRAK

= 100 Manufacture and trading
of sportswear and
garments
YEREE
EERRAK
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Name

DAEH

FE (Shantou) (Notes (b) and (c))
EROLEE) (H7E(b) &)

YM (Shantou) (Note (b))
& CILsE) (Hi7E(b))

YY (Shantou) (Note (b))
R C1LsE) (37 (b))

Everall Developments Limited
XEERERAR

Yue Mei (EAG) Limited
wE(BEEE)BRLA
(formerly known as
Yue Mei (HK) Garment
Limited)
(RITBHE (B8 BIR
BRAR)

Eagle Nice Development Limited

BXBRERAR

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
TR
BRREXEH

PRC/Mainland China
HE /B KR

PRC/Mainland China
BB KR

PRC/Mainland China
HE /B KR

BV/
RBRZS

Hong Kong
20

Hong Kong
20

Nominal value
of issued
share/paid-up
registered
capital
ERITRA
HE/#R
A&

HK$15,000,000
15,000,000/ 7T

US$23,399,906
23,399,906 7T

HK$15,000,000
(Note (d))
15,000,000 7T
(FizE()

US$1,000
1,000% 7T

HK$1,000
1,00087T

HKS1
17587T

Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company
KRF/E
RERDL
Direct Indirect

B B

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

Principal
activities

FREK

Manufacture and trading
of sportswear and
garments

YEREE
EERRAK

Manufacture and trading
of sportswear and
garments

YEREE
EERRAK

Manufacture and trading
of sportswear and
garments

YEREE
EERRAK

Investment holding
REZR

Manufacture and trading
of sportswear and
garments

YEREE
EFRRAK

Manufacture and trading
of sportswear and
garments

YEREE
EFRRAK
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Name

DAEH

Far East (International)
Garment Limited

2R (BB RKARAT]

Yue Mei (HK) Garment Limited

HE(BFR)RKARAT

Wayable International Inc.
("Wayable")
(Note (¢))(F{5H(e))

Maitex (EAG) Limited
s (EXEE)ERAA
("Maitex HK")
(Note (e))(Fii&E(e)

Actex Garment Co., Limited
FBERAR

("Actex”)

(Note (e))(FfizE(e))

ERGRHRKRERAR
("Maitex PRC")
(Notes (b )and ()
(K15E(0) B(e))

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
TR,
BRREREH

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

BV
KBRS

Hong Kong
20

Taiwan

Lk
R/S

PRC/Mainland China
BB KR
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Nominal value
of issued
share/paid-up
registered
capital
ERITRA
HE/#R2
MEE

HKS1
1787L

HKS1
1787L

Us$100
100%7T

HK$1,000
1,00087T

NTD5,000,000
=Xl
5,000,0007T

HK$31,226,548
31,226,5487% 7T

Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company
KRFE
RERDL
Direct Indirect

B B

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

Principal
activities

IRER

Manufacture and trading
of sportswear and
garments

YEREE
EERRAK

Manufacture and trading
of sportswear and
garments

YEREE
EERRAK

Investment holding

REER

Manufacture and trading
of sportswear and
garments

YEREE
EERRAK

Manufacture and trading
of sportswear and
garments

YEREE
EERRAK

Manufacture and trading
of sportswear and
garments

KEREE
BER KRR
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Notes:

Raw materials
Work in progress
Finished goods

The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends, no rights
to attend or vote at general meetings and no rights to receive any
surplus assets in a return of capital in a winding-up (other than the
nominal amount paid up or credited as paid-up on such shares, after
the sum of HK$100,000,000,000,000 per ordinary share has been
distributed to the holders of the ordinary shares of the company in
such winding-up).

EN (Shantou), FE (Shantou), YM (Shantou), YY (Shantou) and Maitex
PRC are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the PRC
law.

FE (Shantou) is under the liquidation process.

During the year, the registered and paid-up capital of YY (Shantou)
was increased from HK$10,000,000 to HK$ 15,000,000 and

the increase in paid-up capital was made by way of transferring
HK$5,000,000 from its retained profits to its paid-up capital account.

The Group acquired the entire equity interest of Wayable and its
subsidiaries, namely, Maitex HK, Actex and Maitex PRC (collectively
known as the “Wayable Group”) from Chen Hsin-Yin, Chen Li-Ying
and Chen Hsiao-Ying, the then shareholders of Wayable during the
year (the “Acquisition”). Chen Li-Ying and Chen Hsiao-Ying become
the shareholders of the Company and were appointed as the directors
of the Company after the Acquisition. Details of the Acquisition are
disclosed in Note 28.

JRFTHL
FE5m
Sk an

PiteE

A0 R IERR I AR R ERAR 2. -
FERRAGHER LIRE - URIEER
REBEARESEMFSBEE(BEN
% 3 38 A% 42 20 100,000,000,000,000
BILOIRTAREBRRERFEAL
EERDZERRARIIERRHEE
BRAN) o

RECLE) - mBRCOLE) - #W=E Ol
S8 - /& OliSE) K Maitex PRC AR
HEDEPIEM 2 S B E b -

EROWLER) EETER -

FER - ARECILSE) 2 i R AR R AR
10,000,000 7 T 4 1 % 15,000,000 /4
JC ¢ TN R A TYiE B R BRI
#8135 000,000 7T = AR IR AR 1E
ﬁ o

RNEBERFENRROE - MBS KR
/IN# (Wayable® I 2 IR 3 ) Ut Wayable
R H Bt &8 A 7 (Bl Maitex HK ~ Actex &
Maitex PRC) (#5785 Wayable Group ) Z
A ([ WESIE]) - RESY
BN IR BB R RN A R ZBRER - I
BEZEERARRZESE - AEFFIENH
281K o

Group
AEE

2007

—ETLEF

HK$'000

FHT

17,072

18,015

16,915

52,002
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The Group’s accounts receivable mainly relate to a few recognised
and creditworthy customers. The credit period is generally for a
period of 30 to 45 days. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables to minimise the credit risk. Overdue
balances are regularly reviewed by the management of the Group.
The accounts and bills receivable are non-interest-bearing and their
carrying amounts approximate to their fair values.

An aged analysis of the accounts and bills receivable as at the balance
sheet date, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

Within 30 days 30 RIA

31 to 60 days 31 RE 60 X
61 to 90 days 61 XE 90 X
Over 90 days 90 KA =

The above balance is neither past due nor impaired. The financial assets
included in the above balance relate to receivable for which there was
no recent history of default.

Included in the Group’s accounts and bills receivable is the amount
due from #8728 (EIL) BEERSABRZAF (“Yucheng (Kunshan)”),
a subsidiary of Yue Yuen Industrial (Holdings) Limited (“Yue Yuen”),
a substantial shareholder of the Company, of HK$2,907,000 (2007:
HK$2,818,000), which is repayable on similar credit terms to those
offered to the major non-related customers of the Group.

Annual Report 2008

REE 2 BN EREE TR REE
RIFNEFHER - EEH—MRA30KRE4LS
R o REB N KRR RITERE
EZ - BEERBRESEREKRT o B
A Z FEER AR E BT IR B B - 8
WAL RERREMRR - EREEEA
FERE

AEBREERBERAZEUERLRE
RIBHZAHHMRE DT

Group
rEE
2007
—EEAF
HK$'000
FHT

57,845
608
102

38

58,593

A LRI A E RO (E - BN LR
WERR AR B B EE - T HY R KA

BREEAEBZERERRERAEK
WEREL)EBEARBERAR([1KE
(E1)1)2,907,0008 L (Z T +4F :
2,818,000 L) * ZA R AR ITIHE(SE
E)ERAR(THIT) ZHBAR ¥
BARRRZEBRE - ZIABRERM
FAEBFEFFERF 2 BEEEEK

B& -
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Cash and bank balances 0o RIRITHET

Time deposits with original JREZHI A A
maturity of over three months =18 A ZE8fFH

Time deposits with original RERHIB DR
maturity of less than =18 A ZE8fFH

three months

Less: Time deposits pledged

B BERTTES R

for bank overdrafts B5mE

and trade financing fERREE

facilities 2 EBER
Cash and cash equivalents ReRFLFEIER

At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank balances of the Group
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB"”) amounted to HK$115,715,000
(2007: HK$58,697,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies; however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods
of between one day and three months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history
of default. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents and
the pledged deposits approximate to their fair values.

Group Company
FEME RRF]
2007 2007
—ETLE —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET
82,302 152
106,731 106,731
69,133 =
258,166 106,883
(5,518) =
252,648 106,883

REEBEBEXRA  AEBUARK
(TARBDENRe RIRTER
A 1157150008 T ( Z T T + F
58,697,000/ 7T) - ARKEANS A B LB
BEMEY « RIEABIARER)SMNEE I IK
BIA R GEME - EERMETERTE @ AE
B B R AR SNE 275 2 $R1T
HAREHBAHEME o

FR|BITHIRSRGARTFERNEZF
BEXRMFAE - ARERAKREFER
FE—BE=EANERERER - X7
BUIR S HAE BT R R BRENA B, o RTTHAE
R EBREFRDIFRNEEBERIE
RFREEZIRTT - RERREFHEREB
e IR E BE R 2 RE EEE A FER

St

o

“EE\FFH
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An aged analysis of the accounts and bills payable as at the balance
sheet date, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

Within 90 days 90K

91 to 180 days 91 RE180K
181 to 365 days 181 XE365K
Over 365 days 365RLA

Included in the accounts and bills payable is accounts payable of
HK$1,282,000 (2007: HK$645,000) due to SILIZE T 5 i AR FE B R R
BPBRAF] (“Shantou Xianda"), a related company controlled by a
relative of Mr. Chung, a director of the Company, which is repayable
on similar credit terms to those offered by other major non-related
suppliers of the Group.

The accounts and bills payable are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on 45-day terms. The carrying amount of accounts
and bills payable approximate to their fair values.

As at 31 March 2008, the Group's banking facilities were secured by
the following:

(i) corporate guarantees executed by the Company to the extent
of HK$106 million; and

(ii) unlimited corporate guarantees executed by three subsidiaries
of the Company.

Time deposits pledged for bank overdrafts and trade financing
facilities were released during the year.
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REEBRERAZENEREZBIREE
SRR DT

Group
REE
2007
—ERELF
HK$'000
FHT

28,788
302
553

19

29,662

BREERMERRZEAEMAILET L
EREHHMMARAR([ILEELE])
1,282,000 7T ( _%?Eti : 645,00058
iﬂohﬂﬂﬁﬁ“ﬂ%%ﬁ%iZﬁH
Pyl BE A A o sz AL EH A
FEFEE fﬁﬁ%ﬂzm T2 E&RE
}a

RNEARZBRRREER  FEEH R
RASK - BNERREREZ REAEEEA
FERE

RZBBENF=RA=+—H FEEZR
TTHRBEENATIISEERER

(i) AKX A1 %R 3 LA 106,000,00078 JT A
RZAFIER &

(ii) ARB=FKMBRARRINERER
NGIE 7

RIRTTEX LB ZHEREEER 2 EHE
RERFERRER -
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23. ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. Et8ERHEMENKIE

Group Company
rEH AT
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETLF —ZEENF ZETHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAxT FET FAT
Deferred income R A 4,218 3,924 - =
Other payables HAtb fET FRIE 40,487 12,081 - =
Accruals fEstE A 16,590 9,793 100 140
61,295 25,798 100 140
As at 31 March 2008, included in other payables amounting to R-ZEENFE=ZA=+—8 ' st AHf
HK$2,636,000 (2007: HK$1,744,000) was trade deposits received JEfT3RIE 22,636,000/ L (—FZELF !
from Yucheng (Kunshan). 1,744,000% 7T ) I i2 (R 1) 2 BFI%
The carrying amount of the other payables approximate to their fair At FENTFRIE 2 BRE (A BN THEARAD -

values.

BB )\FER
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Group AEE
Accelerated tax Asset
depreciation revaluation Total
IEBIFITE EEEM st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FT FHT FHTT
At 1 April 2006 RZZEZEFEOA—H 1,625 177 1,802
Deferred tax credited to FARERE W EmRNRZ
the consolidated EAERIE (FIEE9)
income statement during
the year (Note 9) (847) - (847)
Deferred tax debited to FARE R 2 EEFIH
equity during the year - 297 297
At 31 March 2007 and RZZET+F=A=+—8H 778 474 1,252
1 April 2007 =T+ FMA—H
Deferred tax debited to FANFtAGREWEmTRZ
the consolidated EIERIE (FEE9)
income statement during
the year (Note 9) 1,857 - 1,857
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BT B A A (Md5E28)
(Note 28) - 7,861 7,861
Deferred tax debited to equity FARE R 2 EEFIE
during the year - 1,093 1,093
Exchange realignment bE AR - 840 840
At 31 March 2008 RZEZEN\F=ZA=F+—H 2,635 10,268 12,903
As at 31 March 2008, there was no significant unrecognised deferred R-BEENEFEZA=+—8  ITEIHRA
tax liability (2007: Nil) for taxes that would be payable on the RNEEE THE A E 2 KE G E’ﬂﬁﬁﬁi
unremitted earnings of certain of the subsidiaries as the Group has no FERRRIEM IR 2 ERARERELERIE
liability to additional tax should such amounts be remitted. BECERLF &) RARIEZE
HEEL - ANEEJNBEREEINIER
Fo
The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$3,947,000 REBREBEE 2 HIBEE3,947,000
(2007: HK$2,672,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting BT (ZZTZL4F ¢ 2,672,000 7T ) 7] &
against future taxable profits of the company in which the losses arose. REARER I A B B ERBIRET o R
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of those losses ATILA R E A —ER RS fE MR FE AR B A -
as the aforesaid company has had no taxable profits for some time. Ml Ep 2 SR RIEETR B EE -
There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of AN AR B AR SRR 3 AR S B M TS P S A
dividends by the Company to its shareholders. &R o
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Company
b NG|
2007
—ETLEF
HK$'000
FHTT
Authorised: SEERRA
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 10,000,000,0000% FAYE & 100,000
HK$0.01 each 0.018 7.2 Tk
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR
499,680,000 (2007: 427,000,000) 499,680,000/% (ZZZLF:
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 427,000,0008%) SR EE
0.0 T2 B 4,270

A summary of the movements in the Company's issued capital during

ARRIEBRITRARAFENBEFELZ

the current and last years is as follows: SEMENT
Share
Number of Issued premium
shares in issue capital account Total
2817 21T gy
ROEE [N RER st
‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TFhx FHET FAET FAET
At 1 April 2007 RZEZLFMNA—H 427,000 4,270 359,932 364,202
Issue of shares (Note) BT 72,680 727 112,654 113,381
At 31 March 2008 n=
= 499,680 4,997 472,586 477,583
Note: Mz -

During the year, 72,680,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted
and issued, credited as fully paid at an issue price of HK$1.56 per share,
in consideration of and in exchange for the acquisition of Wayable Group

(Note 28).

FRN - BRETETRIS6H TR KETT
72,680,000 3% &A% EI{E0.0178 7T ABRFI EELE
2 e LAE A EWayable Group 2 (RIE &
G (FT7E28) ©
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The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme") for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the Scheme include the Company’s directors, including
independent non-executive directors, other employees of the Group,
suppliers of goods or services to the Group and customers of the
Group. The Scheme became effective on 6 August 2003 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount equivalent,
upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company in

issue at any time. The maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to independent non-executive directors’ approval in advance. In
addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or

an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days
from the date of the offer upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the directors, and commences
after a certain vesting period and ends on a date which is not later
than five years from date of the offer of the share options or the
expiry date of the Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of the Company’s shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of the offer of the share
options; (ii) the average closing price of the Company’s shares on the
Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Annual Report 2008

ARARRE —RERE S (T%1E))
SHEABEANEERNELEEMERNEGE
BBEATRHERHLRE - ZetENE
ERZEALTBRARFER(BRBYL
FNTESR)  AEBHEHMESR - AEE
EmBRGHERMASEZS © ZatE

“EZ=FN\ARBRER  BRIELS
TEURKERT - BRI - ZEHEIS A% A
HET10FABRL °

I ARIR 2 AT BB B B RTT L B A2
BEETHER  RZ MSHEEEERAR
BIPMEAIES B 2 1T 10% ° REM
T EAHEA - ARBEEAER LA S
BEAERSEATHITORMNEE &
ENSHEBARR FIPNMERRIRE TR
1% ° E—FREEMBEZREBNER
BHARBERAS ISR

MARBES  THERNEZRERE
B EA T L ERE - ¥9EF R
BB IERNITESIE o o - REW
+ZEABHEA - WARABEZRREK
B IEMITET R EEMBHBEALRY
RIENRAE - BRI FMERRHEE 21T
BRH01%FIEREE BARAGREFHE
42 (E B 155,000,000/ 70 - I ES LR
RASESIRFERE

KBz R AN EE A ER21R
A HERARIMHIBETRBAKE
ZHHER - REZBREZ TR A
EEET  RETHEBHEFSG  XXA
BREEZERBENSNAFZ ABR
R BIER B HER(AREERE) -

BRENTEERESERE - ATEER
WT=F2z&R%  ((REBREZERX
RERNERBBERZABR 2w (5
P D EVMCTE ¢ ()R T B BT RER 5
B AR AR FEBE SR PP T (8 ¢ BeGii)
RABRDEE °



(31 March 2008)
(ZZZNF=A=+—H)

No share options have been granted under the Scheme as at 31 March
2008 or up to the date of approval of these financial statements.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity of the financial statements.

The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the aggregate of the nominal value of the share capitals of

the subsidiaries acquired by the Company pursuant to a group
reorganisation in August 2003, over the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company issued in exchange therefor and the existing
1,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each credited as fully paid, at par.

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations, subsidiaries
registered in the PRC are required to transfer 10% of their profits
after tax, as determined under the PRC accounting regulations, to the
statutory surplus reserve, until the balance of the reserve reaches 50%
of their respective registered capitals. Subject to certain restrictions as
set out in the relevant PRC regulations, the statutory surplus reserve
may be used to offset against accumulated losses.

REZTZZNF=A=+—HHEENBHER
REHERALE - MEBRIEZAERH
EfTfRARHE -

BEAEY BN TR ARSI BR
REBEOER

REHE
REBRAFELBEFEZFRTEL
HEHFERMEHRRP 2R EaED)
REF!

REBEAFEEARBIRE-_ST=F
NAZ EEEAFIKENBQR/RAE
BE4% - BEARRRRIRMBEITZ /A
M1 &% 3R & 1,000,000 i% & i E {E0.01 78
TTIREBARIIES R RMOECZ5E

RIBEEPER - AEBEEHBEEMD
B8 X B B AT AR R AR A 10% (R
HESFROIEE) BREXTERMREHR -
BEEZRHENGEREINESBEMER
50% ° A8 B BRSNS TREIMR
T AEBSHENBIFREREES -
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Company VAN
Retained
Share profits/
premium Capital (accumulated
account reserve losses) Total
Notes R#H BERR,/
BiysE BER BEAGE (REHE8) “ct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T AT AT THT
(Note)
(HizE)
At 1 April 2006 R-EZXENA—H 359,932 43,088 3,936 406,956
Profit for the year ER A 10 - - 3,098 3,098
Interim 2007 dividend ZSTEERERE 11 - - (25,620) (25,620)
Proposed final 2007 dividend BR—ZTHFARBRE 11 - - (25,620) (25,620)
At 31 March 2007 and RZZT+F=ZA=1 —H
1 April 2007 k=ZETtFMA—AH 359,932 43,088 (44,206) 358,814
Issue of shares IR 25 112,654 = = 112,654
Profit for the year FREF 10 - - 92,497 92,497
Additional final 2007 dividend ~ —TZHFBINRBRE 11 = - (4,361) (4,361)
Interim 2008 dividend “ETN\FHHRE 11 = - (34,978) (34,978)
Proposed final 2008 dividend BR-ZT\FRERS 11 - - (49,968) (49,968)
At 31 March 2008 R-ZEEN\E=ZA=+—H 472,586 43,088 (41,016) 474,658

Note: MiEE -

The capital reserve of the Company represents the excess of the then
consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company pursuant
to the same reorganisation over the nominal value of the share capital of

the Company issued in exchange therefor. Under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, the capital reserve may be distributed to the shareholders

of the Company, provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

On 1 September 2007, the Group acquired the entire interest in the
Wayable Group. The Wayable Group is engaged in the manufacture
and trading of sportswear and garments. The purchase consideration
for the Acquisition amounted to approximately HK$ 118,959,000,
which was satisfied by the issue of an aggregate of 72,680,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
at an issue price of HK$1.56 per share by the Company and a cash
consideration of approximately HK$4,322,000. The remaining balance
of HK$ 1,256,000 was cost and expenses directly attributable to the
Acquisition.

Annual Report 2008

ARBERRFEIEARRRER —EAMUKE
MEARERNGEEEFE  BEAXRR
RMMBETZARRRATEZZHE - Rig
RESEERFE  BAREA 2R TARAR
R EREEREZRMNREBHRHE - ARFL
ARLRIRE AR X2 HIRE -

R-ZZETE+FLA—HB AEBEKE
Wayable Group 2 & #B # z= ° Wayable
GrouptBEAEREEBEREA K - I
EEIE 2 KB 4118,959,000/8 T * AR
A BIRERRD1.568 T 2 BITER
774 #£72,680,000 B A< A 7] f% 7 th & R
HABEINB Tz EBRUARRERELN
4,322,000/ T2 11 © #2%81,256,000/% 7T
AUREEENEEBRARKRA o



(31 March 2008)
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The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities and contingent Wayable Group,Z °] & # Bl & &= B & F A
liabilities of the Wayable Group as at the date of Acquisition and the FABERBEEEHRZ A TFERE
corresponding carrying amounts immediately before the Acquisition RUWEESEIE AT 2 FEERBRE(EN T ¢

were as follows:

Fair value Previous
recognised carrying
on Acquisition amount
MU EEEE W AT 2
BRZAFLE BRTEE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 FHT FAT
Property, plant and equipment M - BE k& 13 61,527 40,269
Prepaid land lease payments TE LA SRR 14 14,000 3,811
Inventories Ay 5,144 5,144
Accounts and bills receivable FEUBR R R R 27,208 27,208
Prepayments, deposits and BAFIR - Be Rk
other receivables HAb Y RIE 4,062 4,062
Cash and bank balances R& RIRITEESH 23,406 23,406
Accounts and bills payable JERTBRR R B, (3,992) (3,992)
Accrued liabilities and other payables FEET B E R H M e FRIE (27,439) (27,439)
Tax payable JERTFRIR (3,208) (3,208)
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIBBE 24 (7,861) =
92,847 69,261
Goodwill on Acquisition WHESIREERNDE 16 26,112
Total net assets acquired B R EEARE 118,959
Satisfied by: AR
Issue of shares BTG 25 113,381
Cash Re 4,322
Costs associated with the Acquisition U % = IR AE R RK AR 1,256
118,959

“EE\FFH
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An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect WEEE s RE RS EBEEE RAFE
of the Acquisition is as follows: DT -
HK$'000
FAT
Cash consideration ReNRE (4,322)
Costs associated with the Acquisition U BE =I5B AR A (1,256)
Cash and bank balances acquired WUREEIR & RIRTTHERR 23,406
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents WESBE RS MIReSEEE RAFRE
in respect of the Acquisition 17,828
The goodwill on Acquisition represents value obtainable from WA EIAFTEA 7 g EIEANEE T 5E| 2
synergies with the Group and opportunities for the Group to benefit 195 [ & 2 7E Wayable Group A g & &1
from the Wayable Group’s expertise in lean manufacturing and new =2 03 X Wayable Groupf2 it 2 #1115
markets provided by the Wayable Group. ZEMEBE -
Since the Acquisition, the Wayable Group contributed HK$44,443,000 B B ETHLAZK © Wayable Group &8 &
to the Group's revenue and HK$6,957,000 to the Group’s BEEEZE_TTENF=_A=1+—HItFEZ
consolidated profit for the year ended 31 March 2008. W A B BR44,443,0008 T k. B4R A &

FEBR6,957,00078 7T °

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year, the HWEAEHREYELKEE  BIAEER
revenue and the profit of the Group for the year would have been RKREBZLEEWARSIE SR A
HK$919,324,000 and HK$136,694,000 respectively. 919,324,0007 7T }.136,694,00078 T, ©

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities not REEGEBXRA @ ANEEWEE A H AR
provided for at the balance sheet date (2007: Nil). BrZEARRBE(ZTTF &) o

As at 31 March 2008, the Company has given corporate guarantees RZEZENF=A=+—8  AQa7E
to banks to the extent of HK$106,000,000 (2007: HK$137,000,000) ETHEARERZ RITHBEEERIR
for banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the Company. 1TEE &% #9106,000,000/8 0 ( —ZTZ+

£ © #9137,000,000% 7T ) A BIHELR ©
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B MRMET(E)

(31 March 2008)
(ZEZENF=A=+—81)

30. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 30. REHEZRH
The Group leases certain of its office, factories and staff quarters AREFREBEKLHELHHEEETHA
under operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms E -WEMEIBSE ZEILMBNT—
ranging from one to three years. E=FARF o
At the balance sheet date, the Group had total future minimum REBEBBRA  AEERTAIHELS
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as AEBE N 2 R REERSBEEENT5IE
follows: BRAEAT :
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Within one year —F A 2,818 2,345
In the second to fifth years, inclusive EFEFNF (REEEMT) 863 2,545
3,681 4,890
31. COMMITMENTS 31. &g

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 30
above, the Group had the following capital commitments at the
balance sheet date:

B _EXPRE30R DI 2 B E RSN - K
SEREERBERBZEAREENT

2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT

Contracted, but not provided for: EHENEES T
Construction of a factory B E 9,403 =
Purchases of computer equipment EEEMRE 1,496 570
10,899 570

The Company did not have any significant commitments at the
balance sheet date (2007: Nil).

REEBERA - NA R A BRI E A
B(CETLF |-

BB )\FER
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(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with related parties during the year:

S F—EEE AR
ZEBE

Subcontracting fee paid to

a related company
Sales of finished goods to mEEE N AHE RN
related companies

Purchases of raw materials
from a related company

Notes:

0) The subcontracting fee paid to FILB TR K FR A
Al, a subsidiary of Yue Yuen, was made according to the
terms similar to those offered by the Group’s non-related
subcontractors.

(i) The sales of finished goods to Yucheng (Kunshan) and ¥

(BI85 A RAR AT, both of which are the subsidiaries

of Yue Yuen, were made according to the terms similar to
those offered to the Group’s non-related customers.

(iii) The purchases of raw materials from Shantou Xianda were
determined by the directors of the Company and the related
company with reference to the then prevailing market
conditions.

The above related party transactions also constitute connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The directors are of the opinion that the above transactions were
conducted in the ordinary course of business of the Group.
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(b) In May 2005, a subsidiary of the Company entered into a
contract with Pou Yuen Technology Company Limited (“Pou
Yuen"), a subsidiary of Yue Yuen, for the purchase of a
computer system of HK$2,895,000 of which HK$ 1,471,000
was transferred to property, plant and equipment upon
the delivery of the computer system in last year. During the
year, the consideration has been adjusted to HK$2,440,000
and the remaining balance of HK$969,000 was transferred
to property, plant and equipment upon the delivery of the
computer system (Note 15). The consideration was fully paid
and was determined after arm'’s length negotiation.

(0 Details of the Group’s trade balances with its related parties as
at the balance sheet date are disclosed in notes 19, 21 and 23
to the financial statements.

(d) The directors are the key management personnel of the
Group. Details of their remunerations are disclosed in note 7
to the financial statements.

The Group'’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and short
term deposits. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as accounts and bills receivable and accounts and bills
payable, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. The
board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk
The Group has no interest-bearing borrowings, and believes its
exposure to interest rate risk is minimal.

(b) RZZEZTRFERHA  ARF—H
RN R Rl i Sl RN
Pou Yuen Technology Company
Limited ([ Pou Yuen )5] 32 —IB&
4 - DABEE 2,895,000 7T 2 B K
%m’*¢1w1m&%neﬂz
EXH:“%ﬁ%Eﬁi%% R
BX#&kE-FR RESHAER
2,440,000 7T - T £2 5% 969,000
BITAIRR M EKEZRREEEY
¥ BB RREMEE1S) o RE
BRI BENEATHERE
I

(0 AEBREEAERBEBBEALT
ZEBEGHBRY SRR
19~ 21 K23 EE -

(d) BEEAREBIIBEREAS -
B EFHN 2 F BRI SRR
BE -

AEBNEFZSRTARERS REHT
Ko AEBHBEBERLRERE JEHEE
FEEBRERBHMeMEERAE -
RESEREEESE

AEBECRIAEZ F2RAM EJKEﬂTH
% JMNERR RBELEAREEER
% e é%’\%ﬁﬂlﬁz’;*”@xlﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ
ZBE - RT3

R e
AEEYETSEE  WARAEYZR
22 LB S A -
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Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise
from substantial portion of sales or purchases by operating units in
US$ and RMB. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from the exposure of US$ and RMB. As the foreign currency risks
generated from the sales and purchases can be set off with each

other, the Group believes its exposure to exchange rate risk is minimal.

It is the policy of the Group to continue maintaining the balance of its
sales and purchases in the same currency. However, as the Group'’s
financial statements are reported in Hong Kong dollars, there will be
a translation credit to exchange revaluation reserve as a result of the
RMB appreciation. The majority of the Group’s operating assets are
located in Mainland China and denominated in RMB.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors the foreign exchange exposures
and will consider hedging the significant foreign currency exposures
should the need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the balance sheet
date to a reasonably possible change in the RMB exchange rate, with
all other variables held constant, of the Group's net profit (due to
changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

2008 —EENF
If HK$ weakens against RMB BT ARERE
If HK$ strengthens against RMB ST HAREAE
2007 —ETLEF
If HK$ weakens against RMB ST HARKRZE
If HK$ strengthens against RMB ST HAREAE
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Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g. accounts and bills
receivable) and the projected cash flows from operations.

The Group maintains a balance between continuity of funding and
flexibility through maintaining sufficient cash and available banking
facilities. The directors have reviewed the Group’s working capital
and capital expenditure requirements and determined that the
Group has no significant liquidity risk. The maturity profile of the
Group's financial liabilities as at the balance sheet date, based on the
contracted undiscounted payments, was as follows:

Group

On demand
FEER
HK$'000
FHET

2008 —EBENF
Accounts and bills payable FE R R i -
Other payables E At T FIE 680
680

2007 —ERELF
Accounts and bills payable FEER R R i -
Other payables E At T FRIE -

REES R
AEEFEAEEHRASE SR TARR
BeERZEAR - RETAREEHHT
ARE B EE(MERERERE) 2 258
155 - A RSB ZRETRIA -

AEBEFREFTHE S RRITERE
B ARESRHEREREEN 2 HEHT
e  FEERIAKENEEESRER
THER  UREAEEWESEKNTE
BeREk  FAEEVBEEREREERRRX
A& L 3ERE IR SRVEH 2 ZIEE R D T
N

KEE

3 months to

Less than 12 months
3 months =@EAZE Total
PR=@EA +=@A st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T3t T3t
52,577 3,022 55,599
21,922 17,885 40,487
74,499 20,907 96,086
28,788 874 29,662
9,813 2,268 12,081
38,601 3,142 41,743

“EE\FFH
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Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties.
It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on

credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivables balances are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties, there is generally no requirement for collateral.

The credit risk of the Group'’s other financial assets, which comprise
cash and cash equivalents and other receivables, arises from default
of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from accounts and bills receivable are disclosed in note 19
to the financial statements.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to

it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the
years ended 31 March 2008 and 2007.

The Group monitors capital using a current ratio, which is total current
assets divided by total current liabilities. The Group’s policy is to keep
the current ratio above 1.

Fair value

The Company’s financial instruments are short-term in nature and
therefore their carrying values as at 31 March 2008 approximate to
their fair values.

As further explained in note 2.2 to the financial statements, due

to the adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs during the current
year, certain comparative amounts have been presented separately in
respect of items disclosed for the first time in 2007.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors of the Company on 18 July 2008.
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